
Lancashire County Council

External Scrutiny Committee

Tuesday, 6th March, 2018 at 10.30 am in Committee Room 'B' (The Diamond 
Jubilee Room) - County Hall, Preston 

Agenda

Part I (Open to Press and Public)

No. Item

1. Appointment of Chair of External Scrutiny 
Committee  
The Committee is asked to note that County Councillor 
Edward Nash psc has been appointed as Chair of the 
External Scrutiny Committee for the remainder of the 
2017/18 municipal year.  

The Full Council appointed County Councillor David 
O'Toole as Chair of the Committee in May 2017.   
County Councillor Aidy Riggott was appointed to 
replace Councillor O'Toole as Chair of the Committee 
following Councillor O'Toole's appointment as Chair of 
the Internal Scrutiny Committee on 11 January 2018.  
Councillor Riggott has recently been appointed as a 
Lead Member, which has resulted in Councillor Nash 
being appointed to replace him as Chair of the External 
Scrutiny Committee.

2. Apologies  

3. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary 
Interests  
Members are asked to consider any Pecuniary and 
Non-Pecuniary Interests they may have to disclose to 
the meeting in relation to matters under consideration 
on the Agenda.

4. Transport for the North - Consultation on the Draft 
Strategic Transport Plan  

(Pages 1 - 78)

5. External Scrutiny Committee Work Plan 2017/18  (Pages 79 - 84)



6. Urgent Business  
An item of urgent business may only be considered 
under this heading where, by reason of special 
circumstances to be recorded in the Minutes, the Chair 
of the meeting is of the opinion that the item should be 
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.  
Wherever possible, the Chief Executive should be 
given advance warning of any Member’s intention to 
raise a matter under this heading.

7. Date of Next Meeting  
The next ordinary meeting of the External Scrutiny 
Committee will be held on Tuesday 24 April 2018 at 
10.30am at County Hall, Preston.

L Sales
Director of Corporate Services

County Hall
Preston



External Scrutiny Committee
Meeting to be held on Tuesday, 6 March 2018

Electoral Division affected:
(All Divisions);

Transport for the North - Consultation on the Draft Strategic Transport Plan
(Appendices A, B, C and D refer)

Contact for further information:
Gary Halsall, Tel: (01772) 536989, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Overview 
and Scrutiny), 
gary.halsall@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

Jonathan Spruce, Interim Strategy Director and Robin Miller-Stott, Senior Policy and 
Strategy Officer from Transport for the North will attend the meeting to present the 
key messages of the draft Strategic Transport Plan for the North; a 30-year vision 
for transport investment currently out for consultation. Dave Colbert, Specialist 
Advisor – Transport Planning from Lancashire County Council will also attend the 
meeting.

Recommendation

The External Scrutiny Committee is asked to formulate recommendations for 
potential inclusion in the County Council's response to the Transport for the North's 
consultation on the draft Strategic Transport Plan for the North which will be 
considered by Cabinet at its meeting scheduled on 12 April 2018.

Background and Advice 

Transport for the North (TfN) is a pan-northern partnership of civic and business 
leaders from across the North that will become the first Sub-National Transport Body 
in England on 1 April 2018.  Working with the Department for Transport, Highways 
England, Network Rail and High Speed 2 (HS2) Ltd, TfN is tasked with setting out 
the future requirements of the North's transport networks through the development of 
a Strategic Transport Plan for the North. TfN is now consulting on a draft of that plan. 

The full draft Strategic Transport Plan is available from the Transport for the North's 
website (98 pages). Key messages from the plan are set out at Appendix A to this 
report. In addition to this, TfN are also consulting on their Integrated Sustainability 
Appraisal (ISA) a series of assessments that the draft Strategic Transport Plan has 
been subject to such as the Sustainability and Strategic Environmental Assessment 
(SA/SEA), Health Impact Assessment (HIA) and Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 
and Community Safety Assessment (CSA). The full ISA documentation is also 
available on the Transport for the North's website (103 page report, 482 pages of 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4

https://transportforthenorth.com/wp-content/uploads/TfN-Strategic-Plan_draft_lr.pdf
https://transportforthenorth.com/wp-content/uploads/TfN-Strategic-Plan_draft_lr.pdf
https://transportforthenorth.com/stp/
https://transportforthenorth.com/stp/


appendices and a 45 page Habitats Regulations Assessment). The executive 
summary for the ISA is set out at Appendix B to this report.

The consultation closes on 17 April 2018. The questionnaire is hosted by Ipsos 
MORI Surveys and is available on their website here. A copy of the consultation 
questions is set out at Appendix C to assist the Committee in formulating any 
recommendations for potential inclusion in the County Council's response which will 
be presented to Cabinet at its meeting on 12 April 2018.

Members of the Committee should note that whilst a paper copy of all the 
consultation questions has been provided, it is preferred, should any member 
choose to respond to the consultation in their own capacity (and not as a member of 
the External Scrutiny Committee) that members complete the online the survey.

A copy of the presentation to be delivered by TfN at the meeting is set out at 
Appendix D.

Members will note that a Bite Size Briefing on this matter has been scheduled for 
Wednesday 28 February 2018 at 10am. This briefing will summarise the work 
undertaken to date, including how the County Council is ensuring that the whole of 
Lancashire can benefit from this vision. Members of the External Scrutiny Committee 
are encouraged to attend this event.

The External Scrutiny Committee therefore has the opportunity to contribute to the 
County Council's response before it is agreed by Cabinet.

Consultations

N/A

Implications: 

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

This report has no significant risk implications.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

N/A

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate

N/A

Page 2

http://www.ipsos.uk/transportplanconsultation
http://www.ipsos.uk/transportplanconsultation
http://www.ipsos.uk/transportplanconsultation


TRANSPORT FOR THE 

Strategic Transport Plan 
Draft for public consultation 

Key Messages  
Connecting and growing the 
economy of the North of England

transportforthenorth.com

Manchester

Transport for the North 
2nd Floor 
4 Piccadilly Place 
Manchester 
M1 3BN

Leeds

Transport for the North 
Ground Floor  
West Gate  
Grace Street  
Leeds  
LS1 2RP

Let us know what you think

We want to know what you think of our  

draft Strategic Transport Plan. Between mid 

January and mid April 2018 we are carrying  

out a public consultation on our plans. Go  

to transportforthenorth.com to let us know  

what you think and for details of our 

engagement events.

You can also send written feedback to:

TfN Draft Transport Plan Consultation 

IPSOS Mori North 

Freepost Admail 4275 

Manchester 

M60 1HE

transportplanconsultation@ipsos-mori.com

© Transport for the North | January 2018

engagement@transportforthenorth.com0161 244 0888

P
age 3

ghalsall001
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



2 3

We’re Transport for the 
North (TfN), a partnership of 
civic and business leaders 
from across the North of 
England.

Over the next 30 years, we want 

to transform our road, rail, sea and 

air connections to help drive long 

term economic growth. Our Strategic 

Transport Plan explains the need for 

investment in transport across the North 

and identifies the priority areas for 

improved connectivity. This guide will 

give you an overview of our plans and 

the benefits a transformed Northern 

transport network will bring.

Gaining statutory status

From April 2018, we will be England’s 

first Sub-national Transport Body, 

overseen by the 19 different transport 

authorities across the North. With 

statutory status, we have the mandate 

to make recommendations on behalf 

The North is an attractive, diverse region and 
home to around 16 million people. We have vibrant 
communities, buzzing cities, five stunning  
National Parks, an abundance of talent and  
a wealth of high-performing businesses.

However, from an economic perspective the region is underachieving. 

The economic value per person in the North (GVA) is 25% below 

England’s average, and our income per person is £7500 less.

The need for change	

About Transport  
for the North 

Our vision is of a thriving North 
of England, where modern 
transport connections drive 
economic growth and support 
an excellent quality of life.

Closing the gap
The success of the UK in the global 

marketplace depends upon transforming 

the economy of the North.

The Northern Powerhouse Independent 

Economic Review identified some of the 

key factors contributing towards this gap, 

including:

	 Lack of highly skilled opportunities

	� Underuse of innovation and 

technology

	 Lower levels of enterprise

	� A lack of collaboration between 

Northern economic centres 

	� Poor links and under investment  

in transport

of the North to the Department for 

Transport, Network Rail, Highways 

England and HS2 Ltd. Rail North is 

also merging with us, becoming our 

franchising arm.

Working with our Partners

Transport for the North has a clear 

remit to identify and plan the transport 

infrastructure required to support 

transformational economic growth in 

the North. It also supports local and 

national government, as well as the 

private sector and transport operators. 

This is to align local investment in 

public transport and active modes of 

travel with strategic, investment across 

the North. 

P
age 4



54 55

The benefits of a  
transformed North 
The Northern Powerhouse Independent Economic Review 
identified four areas where the North is highly skilled and 
globally competitive. These are called ‘prime capabilities’.

Promoting, growing and connecting the North’s prime capabilities could result 

in higher productivity. The prime capabilities are supported by three ‘enabling 

capabilities’. These are services or skills that provide the expertise and support 

for the North’s economy to flourish, and for its people to enjoy a better quality of life.

Our role

Having a reliable, resilient transport network for journeys to, from and within the 

North is an integral part of our vision. Our role in supporting economic growth is:

Advanced  
Manufacturing

�Education  

(particularly Higher 

Education)

Financial & 

Professional 

Services
Logistics

Digital Energy
Health  

Innovation

�Connecting people:  

Creating faster, more reliable 

transport connections to 

improve job opportunities, 

give access to leisure 

activities & support tourism.

Connecting businesses: 

Supporting commerce by 

improving national and 

international connections 

in, out of and across the 

region.

�Moving goods:  

Improving links across  

the North and to our ports  

and airports to enable 

freight and goods to  

move more efficiently.

Supporting sustainable  
economic growth

	� Increase 

employment  

and real wages

	 Increase business 		

	 competition  

	 and productivity 

	 Support health and 	

	 wellbeing

	 Increase land value

If the economy of the North is transformed, 
by 2050 we could see around:

increase in GVA
£100bn

 

  

850,000 
additional  
jobs

To make this happen, we need significant, long term 

investment in the North’s transport network. 

Investment in transport can:

An Integrated Sustainability Appraisal has been 

prepared alongside the Strategic Transport Plan to 

constructively challenge the outputs of our plans.

	� Improve standards 

of living across the 

region

	� Stimulate business 

collaboration 

	� Reduce journey times 

	� Reduce transport 

costs
£

P
age 5



6 7

Northern  

Powerhouse Rail

Ambitious plans to provide 

rapid, reliable and resilient 

rail links between our  

major towns and cities.

Long Term  

Rail Strategy

Investment in lines, stations, 

services and franchises will 

deliver greater connectivity, 

capacity and cost 

effectiveness.

Major Road Network

We have identified the  

roads across the North that 

are vital for economic growth 

and are evaluating how best 

to strengthen this network.

Integrated and  

Smart Travel

We will bring a new era 

of simple and seamless 

public transport journeys 

across the North.

Roads Smart

To plan transport infrastructure to 

support the Northern Powerhouse, 

we need to identify where growth 

will occur and the impact it will have 

on our roads, rail, ports and airports.

Connecting 
the North

Our Northern Transport Demand 

Model estimates how changes in GVA, 

employment, population and transport 

could affect travel patterns. That, along 

with a wide range of other evidence, 

allows us to prioritise our investment 

programme into three time frames: 

	� Short term: up to 2025	

	� Medium term: 2026-2035

	� Long term: 2036-2050

In the next section you’ll see some of our 

key programmes. The current estimate 

of the total value of the emerging 

investment programme from 2020-2050 

is £60-£70 billion.

Rail

Working to 
transform 
the North

Roads Smart

The objectives of the 
Strategic Transport Plan are:

	� Increase efficiency, reliability and 

resilience in the transport system	

	� Transform economic performance

	 Improve access to opportunities 		

	 across the North

	 Promote and support the built and 		

	 natural environment

P
age 6



8 9

SHEFFIELD

HULL
LEEDS

NEWCASTLE

LIVERPOOL

MANCHESTER
AIRPORT

MANCHESTER

1
2

4

5

6

3

TO MIDLANDS 
AND LONDON

TO MIDLANDS 
AND LONDON

TO SCOTLAND

SUNDERLAND

MIDDLESBROUGH

DONCASTER

GRIMSBY

TO SCOTLAND

DURHAM

DARLINGTON

YORK

WAKEFIELD

BRADFORD

HUDDERSFIELD

BARNSLEY

CHESTERFIELD

WARRINGTON

TO
NORTH
WALES

CREWE
CHESTER

PRESTON

WIGAN

LANCASTER

OXENHOLME

PENRITH

CARLISLE

1.3million with  
Northern Powerhouse Rail

10,000  
Today

People

train journey from 4 or more  
major northern cities.

within a…

m
in

s60

Northern Powerhouse Rail will 
deliver massive improvements:

Northern Powerhouse Rail would link the North’s six main cities 

and Manchester Airport, as well as other significant economic 

centres. It could be developed in stages, making best use of 

existing rail infrastructure and planned investments (such as 

HS2) alongside new railway lines and significant upgrades.

A step change in rail connectivity between 
some of the North’s largest cities is required 
to grow opportunities for the next generation 
of workers and investors.  
 
Northern Powerhouse Rail, together with HS2, would transform rail 

travel across the North, offering much faster, more frequent and 

reliable rail links and opening up new opportunities for Northern 

citizens and businesses. 

Northern  
Powerhouse Rail

Businesses
within a… 

train journey from 4 or more  
major northern cities.

39%   
with Northern  
Powerhouse Rail

10%  
Today

m
in

s90

Northern Powerhouse Rail 
junctions with HS2:

1.	 Junction on HS2 mainline for 
Leeds – North East services

2.	 Junction on HS2 Leeds spur 
to facilitate through services 
via existing Leeds station

3.	 Junction on HS2 mainline for 
Sheffield – Leeds services

4.	 Junction at Manchester 
Piccadilly to support Northern 
Powerhouse Rail platforms

5.	 Junction on HS2 Manchester 
spur for Manchester – 
Liverpool services

6.	 South facing junction on 
HS2 mainline for London – 
Liverpool services

Emerging vision  
for the network

9

Northern Powerhouse Rail –
upgraded line

Northern Powerhouse Rail – 
new line

Linking Liverpool to HS2

HS2 line

TransPennine route Upgrade

Existing line

Northern Powerhouse  
Rail hub station  
 
 
Other significant  
economic centre

P
age 7



10 11

56
Strategic Transport Plan  |  What

F

E

G

A

C

B

D

Seven  
corridors of  
opportunity

We have identified seven strategic 

development corridors across 

our region where we will focus on 

improving transport infrastructure. 

These corridors link important ‘prime 

capability’ assets and important 

economic centres that are currently in 

need of improved connectivity. 

When goods, services, knowledge 

and skills move more freely, greater 

collaboration will follow. Future 

investment won’t just be concentrated 

in these corridors, but they are where 

the greatest growth opportunities exist. 

10

WHITEHAVEN

CARLISLE

DARLINGTON

DURHAM

SUNDERLAND

MIDDLESBROUGH

NEWCASTLE

BARROW-IN-
FURNESS

BLACKPOOL
PRESTON

Improving connectivity between some of the 
UK’s important non-carbon energy advanced 
manufacturing, research assets, and economic 
centres in Cumbria, Lancashire, North Yorkshire,  
the North East and Tees Valley.

The map below shows the location of this corridor and some 

of the emerging investment priorities beyond the baseline 

commitments and interventions.

Connecting the  
Energy Coasts

A66 corridor 
to Teesport

Northumberland 
to Newcastle rail 
connections

Cumbrian Coast Line

A590 and A595 
corridors

62
Strategic Transport Plan  |  What

Important Economic Centres
Accrington / Rossendale Valley, Batley, Beverley, 
Birchwood, Blackburn, Blackpool Airport, Blackpool, 
Bolton, Bootle, Bradford, Bridlington, Brighouse, 
Brough, Buckshaw, Burnley, Bury, Castleford, Chorley, 
Clitheroe, Colne, Cuerden, Dewsbury, Fleetwood, 
Goole, Halifax (including Sowerby Bridge), Harrogate, 
Hillhouse International Enterprise Zone, Huddersfield, 
Hull, Huyton, Keighley, Leeds Bradford Airport, Leeds, 
Leigh, Lindley Moor East and West Enterprise Zone, 
Liverpool John Lennon Airport, Liverpool, Manchester, 
Nelson, North West Preston, Oldham, Pontefract, Port 
of Garston, Port of Liverpool, Port Salford, Preston, 
Rochdale, Samlesbury Enterprise Zone, Scarborough, 
Seaforth, Selby, Skipton, Southport, Speke, St Helens, 
Wakefield, Wallasey, Warrington, Warton Enterprise 
Zone, Wetherby, Whitby, Wigan, Wirral International 
Business Park, York.

Multi-modal

Business as usual scenario 2050 NPIER Transformational Scenario Added Value 2050

+ £38.6bnGVA
£260bn + 750kpopulation

8.7m + 470kjobs
4.2m

Current 

Rail Lines

HS2

Minor Northern Ports

Enterprise Zones

Major Northern Ports

Future

MRNMajor Rail Stations

Prime Capabilities Economic Centres

Digital

Health Innovation

Advanced Manufacturing

Energy

Airports

The Corridors

Multi-modal

56
Strategic Transport Plan  |  What

F

E

G

A

C

B

D

The Corridors

Connecting the Energy Coasts

Central Pennines

Southern Pennines 

West and Wales

East Coast to Scotland 

North West to Sheffield City Region

Yorkshire to Scotland

A

D

B

E

C

F

G

Rail

56
Strategic Transport Plan  |  What

F

E

G

A

C

B

D

The Corridors

Connecting the Energy Coasts

Central Pennines

Southern Pennines 

West and Wales

East Coast to Scotland 

North West to Sheffield City Region

Yorkshire to Scotland

A

D

B

E

C

F

GRoad

56
Strategic Transport Plan  |  What

F

E

G

A

C

B

D

The Corridors

Connecting the Energy Coasts

Central Pennines

Southern Pennines 

West and Wales

East Coast to Scotland 

North West to Sheffield City Region

Yorkshire to Scotland

A

D

B

E

C

F

G

P
age 8



62
Strategic Transport Plan  |  What

Important Economic Centres
Accrington / Rossendale Valley, Batley, Beverley, 
Birchwood, Blackburn, Blackpool Airport, Blackpool, 
Bolton, Bootle, Bradford, Bridlington, Brighouse, 
Brough, Buckshaw, Burnley, Bury, Castleford, Chorley, 
Clitheroe, Colne, Cuerden, Dewsbury, Fleetwood, 
Goole, Halifax (including Sowerby Bridge), Harrogate, 
Hillhouse International Enterprise Zone, Huddersfield, 
Hull, Huyton, Keighley, Leeds Bradford Airport, Leeds, 
Leigh, Lindley Moor East and West Enterprise Zone, 
Liverpool John Lennon Airport, Liverpool, Manchester, 
Nelson, North West Preston, Oldham, Pontefract, Port 
of Garston, Port of Liverpool, Port Salford, Preston, 
Rochdale, Samlesbury Enterprise Zone, Scarborough, 
Seaforth, Selby, Skipton, Southport, Speke, St Helens, 
Wakefield, Wallasey, Warrington, Warton Enterprise 
Zone, Wetherby, Whitby, Wigan, Wirral International 
Business Park, York.

Multi-modal

Business as usual scenario 2050 NPIER Transformational Scenario Added Value 2050

+ £38.6bnGVA
£260bn + 750kpopulation

8.7m + 470kjobs
4.2m

Current 

Rail Lines

HS2

Minor Northern Ports

Enterprise Zones

Major Northern Ports

Future

MRNMajor Rail Stations

Prime Capabilities Economic Centres

Digital

Health Innovation

Advanced Manufacturing

Energy

Airports

Important Economic Centres
Altrincham, Ashton-under-Lyne, Birchwood, Bolton, Bury, 
Central Salford, Chester, Congleton, Crewe, Deeside, 
Ditton, Ellesmere Port, Greater Manchester Life Science 
Park, Huyton, Knowsley, Leigh, Liverpool John Lennon 
Airport, Liverpool, Macclesfield, Manchester Airport 
including Airport City and Enterprise Zone, Manchester, 
Middlewich, Nantwich, Northwich, Oldham, Port of 
Garston, Port of Liverpool, Port Salford, Rochdale, 
Runcorn, Salford Quays: Media City, SciTech Daresbury, 
Skelmersdale, Speke, St Helens, Stockport, Thornton 
Science Park, Trafford Park, Wallasey, Warrington, 
Widnes, Wigan, Winsford, Wirral International Business 
Park, Wrexham.

Multi-modal

Business as usual scenario 2050 NPIER Transformational Scenario Added Value 2050

+ £33.7bnGVA
£219bn + 440kpopulation

5.6m + 260kjobs
2.5m

Current 

Rail Lines

HS2

Minor Northern Ports

Enterprise Zones

Major Northern Ports

Future

MRNMajor Rail Stations

Prime Capabilities Economic Centres

Digital

Health Innovation

Advanced Manufacturing

Energy

Airports

Important Economic Centres
Altrincham, Ashton-under-Lyne, Birchwood, Bolton, Bury, 
Central Salford, Chester, Congleton, Crewe, Deeside, 
Ditton, Ellesmere Port, Greater Manchester Life Science 
Park, Huyton, Knowsley, Leigh, Liverpool John Lennon 
Airport, Liverpool, Macclesfield, Manchester Airport 
including Airport City and Enterprise Zone, Manchester, 
Middlewich, Nantwich, Northwich, Oldham, Port of 
Garston, Port of Liverpool, Port Salford, Rochdale, 
Runcorn, Salford Quays: Media City, SciTech Daresbury, 
Skelmersdale, Speke, St Helens, Stockport, Thornton 
Science Park, Trafford Park, Wallasey, Warrington, 
Widnes, Wigan, Winsford, Wirral International Business 
Park, Wrexham.

Multi-modal

Business as usual scenario 2050 NPIER Transformational Scenario Added Value 2050

+ £33.7bnGVA
£219bn + 440kpopulation

5.6m + 260kjobs
2.5m

Current 

Rail Lines

HS2

Minor Northern Ports

Enterprise Zones

Major Northern Ports

Future

MRNMajor Rail Stations

Prime Capabilities Economic Centres

Digital

Health Innovation

Advanced Manufacturing

Energy

Airports

62
Strategic Transport Plan  |  What

Important Economic Centres
Accrington / Rossendale Valley, Batley, Beverley, 
Birchwood, Blackburn, Blackpool Airport, Blackpool, 
Bolton, Bootle, Bradford, Bridlington, Brighouse, 
Brough, Buckshaw, Burnley, Bury, Castleford, Chorley, 
Clitheroe, Colne, Cuerden, Dewsbury, Fleetwood, 
Goole, Halifax (including Sowerby Bridge), Harrogate, 
Hillhouse International Enterprise Zone, Huddersfield, 
Hull, Huyton, Keighley, Leeds Bradford Airport, Leeds, 
Leigh, Lindley Moor East and West Enterprise Zone, 
Liverpool John Lennon Airport, Liverpool, Manchester, 
Nelson, North West Preston, Oldham, Pontefract, Port 
of Garston, Port of Liverpool, Port Salford, Preston, 
Rochdale, Samlesbury Enterprise Zone, Scarborough, 
Seaforth, Selby, Skipton, Southport, Speke, St Helens, 
Wakefield, Wallasey, Warrington, Warton Enterprise 
Zone, Wetherby, Whitby, Wigan, Wirral International 
Business Park, York.

Multi-modal

Business as usual scenario 2050 NPIER Transformational Scenario Added Value 2050

+ £38.6bnGVA
£260bn + 750kpopulation

8.7m + 470kjobs
4.2m

Current 

Rail Lines

HS2

Minor Northern Ports

Enterprise Zones

Major Northern Ports

Future

MRNMajor Rail Stations

Prime Capabilities Economic Centres

Digital

Health Innovation

Advanced Manufacturing

Energy

Airports

1312

LIVERPOOL

 North Wales 
Metro/Growth 
Track 360

Warrington 
Waterfront 
Western Link

Port of Liverpool -  
West Coast Main Line freight 
connections

A500 dualling

Freight-prioritised, gauge-cleared 
rail route across the Pennines

Leeds Station masterplan

M65/A59 corridor  
major improvements

A1079/A164 corridor to 
Humber Ports, including 
Jock’s Lodge junction

CHESTER

Central Pennines	
Driving strategic east-west connectivity for 
some of the North’s important economic 
centres and assets in North Yorkshire, West 
Yorkshire, East Riding and Hull and Humber 
through to Greater Manchester, Lancashire 
and Liverpool City Region.

The map below shows the location of this corridor 

and some of the emerging investment priorities 

beyond the baseline commitments and interventions.

WARRINGTON

WARRINGTON

MANCHESTER

BLACKPOOL PRESTON

YORK

LEEDS

BRADFORD
BEVERLEY

Moving people and goods, to, from and 
through the important economic centres 
and assets of Cheshire, Liverpool City 
Region and Greater Manchester, with 
strategic connectivity in to North Wales  
and the Midlands. 

The map below shows the location of this corridor 

and some of the emerging investment priorities 

beyond the baseline commitments and interventions.

West and Wales

SCARBOROUGH

HULL

Addressing heavy rail 
capacity constraints in 
central Manchester

Improved access to 
Manchester Airport

P
age 9



64
Strategic Transport Plan  |  What

Business as usual scenario 2050 NPIER Transformational Scenario Added Value 2050

Important Economic Centres
Altrincham, Ashton-under-Lyne, Barnsley, Birchwood, 
Bolton, Brough, Bury, Castleford, Central Salford, 
Doncaster, Gainsborough, Goole, Grimsby, Hull, 
Humberside Airport, Huyton, iPort Doncaster, Leigh, 
Lincoln, Liverpool John Lennon Airport, Liverpool, 
Manchester Airport including Airport City and 
Enterprise Zone, Manchester, Oldham, Pontefract, Port 
of Garston, Port of Immingham, Port of Killingholme, 
Port of Liverpool, Port Salford, Rochdale, Rossington, 
Salford Quays: Media City, Scunthorpe, Sheffield, 
Sheffield Doncaster Airport, Speke, St Helens, Stockport, 
Trafford Park, Upper and Lower Don Valleys, Wakefield, 
Wallasey, Warrington, Wigan, Wirral International 
Business Park.

+ £47bnGVA
£316bn + 640kpopulation

7.0m + 390kjobs
3.7m

Multi-modal

Current 

Rail Lines

HS2

Minor Northern Ports

Enterprise Zones

Major Northern Ports

Future

MRNMajor Rail Stations

Prime Capabilities Economic Centres

Digital

Health Innovation

Advanced Manufacturing

Energy

Airports

66
Strategic Transport Plan  |  What

Important Economic Centres

Altrincham, Ashton-under-Lyne, Barrow-in-Furness, 
Blackburn, Blackpool Airport Enterprise Zone, 
Blackpool, Buckshaw, Carlisle Airport, Carlisle, Central 
Salford, Chorley, Clitheroe, Cuerden, Doncaster, 
iPort Doncaster, Kendal, Kirkby Lonsdale, Lancaster 
University and Bailrigg Garden Village, Lancaster, 
Leigh, Leyland, Lytham St Annes, Manchester Airport 
including Airport City and Enterprise Zone, Manchester, 
Morecambe, Oldham, Penrith, Port of Heysham, Port 
Salford, Preston, Sheffield Doncaster Airport, Rochdale, 
Rossington, Salford Quays: Media City, Samlesbury 
Enterprise Zone, Sheffield, Stockport, Trafford Park, 
Ulverston, Upper and Lower Don Valleys, Warton 
Enterprise Zone, Wigan.

Rail

+ £33.1bnGVA
£240bn + 562kpopulation

7.0m + 334kjobs
3.2m

Business as usual scenario 2050 NPIER Transformational Scenario Added Value 2050

Current 

Rail Lines

HS2

Minor Northern Ports

Enterprise Zones

Major Northern Ports

Future

MRNMajor Rail Stations

Prime Capabilities Economic Centres

Digital

Health Innovation

Advanced Manufacturing

Energy

Airports

North West to 
Sheffield  
City Region

1514

Strengthening rail links between 
the advanced manufacturing 
sites in Cumbria, Lancashire, 
Greater Manchester and 
Sheffield City Region, with 
improved connectivity from the 
North in to Scotland.
The map below shows the location of 

this corridor and some of the emerging 

investment priorities beyond the 

baseline commitments and interventions.

Southern  
Pennines
Linking the economic centres, 
industries and ports within 
Liverpool City Region, Greater 
Manchester, Cheshire, Sheffield 
City Region and Hull and the 
Humber. Also considering  
cross-border connections with 
the Midlands. 

The map below shows the location of 

this corridor and some of the emerging 

investment priorities beyond the 

baseline commitments and interventions.

 

CARLISLE

Important Economic Centres
Altrincham, Ashton-under-Lyne, Birchwood, Bolton, Bury, 
Central Salford, Chester, Congleton, Crewe, Deeside, 
Ditton, Ellesmere Port, Greater Manchester Life Science 
Park, Huyton, Knowsley, Leigh, Liverpool John Lennon 
Airport, Liverpool, Macclesfield, Manchester Airport 
including Airport City and Enterprise Zone, Manchester, 
Middlewich, Nantwich, Northwich, Oldham, Port of 
Garston, Port of Liverpool, Port Salford, Rochdale, 
Runcorn, Salford Quays: Media City, SciTech Daresbury, 
Skelmersdale, Speke, St Helens, Stockport, Thornton 
Science Park, Trafford Park, Wallasey, Warrington, 
Widnes, Wigan, Winsford, Wirral International Business 
Park, Wrexham.

Multi-modal

Business as usual scenario 2050 NPIER Transformational Scenario Added Value 2050

+ £33.7bnGVA
£219bn + 440kpopulation

5.6m + 260kjobs
2.5m

Current 

Rail Lines

HS2

Minor Northern Ports

Enterprise Zones

Major Northern Ports

Future

MRNMajor Rail Stations

Prime Capabilities Economic Centres

Digital

Health Innovation

Advanced Manufacturing

Energy

Airports

A57/M67/A628 corridor

Enhanced rail access 
to Doncaster Sheffield 
Airport

West Coast 
Main Line 
stations HS2 
ready

Hope Valley Line 
and Sheffield 
Midland station

Sheffield 
Innovation 
Corridor

Port Salford – 
Western Gateway 
Infrastructure

WARRINGTON SHEFFIELD

DONCASTER

SCUNTHORPE

GRIMSBY
MANCHESTERLIVERPOOL

62
Strategic Transport Plan  |  What

Important Economic Centres
Accrington / Rossendale Valley, Batley, Beverley, 
Birchwood, Blackburn, Blackpool Airport, Blackpool, 
Bolton, Bootle, Bradford, Bridlington, Brighouse, 
Brough, Buckshaw, Burnley, Bury, Castleford, Chorley, 
Clitheroe, Colne, Cuerden, Dewsbury, Fleetwood, 
Goole, Halifax (including Sowerby Bridge), Harrogate, 
Hillhouse International Enterprise Zone, Huddersfield, 
Hull, Huyton, Keighley, Leeds Bradford Airport, Leeds, 
Leigh, Lindley Moor East and West Enterprise Zone, 
Liverpool John Lennon Airport, Liverpool, Manchester, 
Nelson, North West Preston, Oldham, Pontefract, Port 
of Garston, Port of Liverpool, Port Salford, Preston, 
Rochdale, Samlesbury Enterprise Zone, Scarborough, 
Seaforth, Selby, Skipton, Southport, Speke, St Helens, 
Wakefield, Wallasey, Warrington, Warton Enterprise 
Zone, Wetherby, Whitby, Wigan, Wirral International 
Business Park, York.

Multi-modal

Business as usual scenario 2050 NPIER Transformational Scenario Added Value 2050

+ £38.6bnGVA
£260bn + 750kpopulation

8.7m + 470kjobs
4.2m

Current 

Rail Lines

HS2

Minor Northern Ports

Enterprise Zones

Major Northern Ports

Future

MRNMajor Rail Stations

Prime Capabilities Economic Centres

Digital

Health Innovation

Advanced Manufacturing

Energy

Airports

BLACKBURN

BLACKPOOL

PRESTON

MANCHESTER

SHEFFIELD

KENDAL

P
age 10



1716

Important Economic Centres
Altrincham, Ashton-under-Lyne, Birchwood, Bolton, Bury, 
Central Salford, Chester, Congleton, Crewe, Deeside, 
Ditton, Ellesmere Port, Greater Manchester Life Science 
Park, Huyton, Knowsley, Leigh, Liverpool John Lennon 
Airport, Liverpool, Macclesfield, Manchester Airport 
including Airport City and Enterprise Zone, Manchester, 
Middlewich, Nantwich, Northwich, Oldham, Port of 
Garston, Port of Liverpool, Port Salford, Rochdale, 
Runcorn, Salford Quays: Media City, SciTech Daresbury, 
Skelmersdale, Speke, St Helens, Stockport, Thornton 
Science Park, Trafford Park, Wallasey, Warrington, 
Widnes, Wigan, Winsford, Wirral International Business 
Park, Wrexham.

Multi-modal

Business as usual scenario 2050 NPIER Transformational Scenario Added Value 2050

+ £33.7bnGVA
£219bn + 440kpopulation

5.6m + 260kjobs
2.5m

Current 

Rail Lines

HS2

Minor Northern Ports

Enterprise Zones

Major Northern Ports

Future

MRNMajor Rail Stations

Prime Capabilities Economic Centres

Digital

Health Innovation

Advanced Manufacturing

Energy

Airports

Important Economic Centres
Altrincham, Ashton-under-Lyne, Birchwood, Bolton, Bury, 
Central Salford, Chester, Congleton, Crewe, Deeside, 
Ditton, Ellesmere Port, Greater Manchester Life Science 
Park, Huyton, Knowsley, Leigh, Liverpool John Lennon 
Airport, Liverpool, Macclesfield, Manchester Airport 
including Airport City and Enterprise Zone, Manchester, 
Middlewich, Nantwich, Northwich, Oldham, Port of 
Garston, Port of Liverpool, Port Salford, Rochdale, 
Runcorn, Salford Quays: Media City, SciTech Daresbury, 
Skelmersdale, Speke, St Helens, Stockport, Thornton 
Science Park, Trafford Park, Wallasey, Warrington, 
Widnes, Wigan, Winsford, Wirral International Business 
Park, Wrexham.

Multi-modal

Business as usual scenario 2050 NPIER Transformational Scenario Added Value 2050

+ £33.7bnGVA
£219bn + 440kpopulation

5.6m + 260kjobs
2.5m

Current 

Rail Lines

HS2

Minor Northern Ports

Enterprise Zones

Major Northern Ports

Future

MRNMajor Rail Stations

Prime Capabilities Economic Centres

Digital

Health Innovation

Advanced Manufacturing

Energy

Airports

East Coast Main 
Line stations HS2 
and Northern 
Powerhouse Rail 
ready including 
Darlington 2025 
vision

A1 corridor

NEWCASTLE

DURHAM

MIDDLESBROUGHDARLINGTON

NORTHALLERTON

NEWCASTLE

SUNDERLAND

DURHAM

DARLINGTON

SCUNTHORPE

DONCASTER

SHEFFIELD

YORK
LEEDS

Improved access 
to Newcastle 
Airport

East Coast to 
Scotland

Improving rail reliability, 
speed and reach along the 

East Coast Main Line and 
other key lines to provide 

enhanced strategic and 
local connectivity in the North 

East, Tees Valley and North 
Yorkshire as well as onward 

connections into Scotland.

The map to the left shows the 

location of this corridor and 

some of the emerging investment 

priorities beyond the baseline 

commitments and interventions.
Leamside Line 
and Durham 
Coast Line

Yorkshire to  
Scotland

Building on existing road 
investment commitments 

to further strengthen road 
connectivity between the 

Midlands, South Yorkshire, 
West Yorkshire, North 

Yorkshire, Tees Valley, the 
North East and Scotland.  

The map to the left shows 

the location of this corridor 

and some of the emerging 

investment priorities beyond 

the baseline commitments 

and interventions.

New Tees 
Crossing

SUNDERLAND

MIDDLESBROUGH

P
age 11



18 1919

Now we’ve shared our vision 
of a modern, prosperous, 
super-connected North, the 
next step is further business 
case development across 
our programmes. This 
will define our short term 
priorities to drive economic 
growth. 

All proposals will go through a stringent 

compliance process and, of course, we 

and our partners will consult with the 

public whenever they are likely to be 

affected by our project work.

Delivering  
our investment  
programme

A smarter 
approach 
to travel

By integrating services 
and implementing smarter 
systems, we will simplify 
travel across the North. 

Working in partnership 
with operators, transport 
authorities and the 
Department for Transport, 
we will make seamless 
public transport throughout 
the region a reality.

How will the work be funded?

As an organisation we can’t borrow 

money or raise revenue, so we are 

developing a sustainable long term 

investment programme. 

A substantial part of our funding 

is expected to come from central 

government, and we are exploring  

other potential funding options too.

With funding in place, we will be in a 

position to work closely with technology, 

sustainability in design, and delivery. 

This enables us to create new appraisal 

and modelling tools, which will both 

complement and support local 

investment.

We require strong evidence and 

analysis to make the case for further 

investment in the North’s strategic 

transport network. We will measure the 

widest possible range of impacts to fully 

capture all of the impacts of transport 

investment and work with Government 

and our Delivery Partners to support 

decisions that cater for long term growth.

Over the next four  

years, we’ll deliver:

	� Smart ticketing across rail  

and bus travel

	 Reduced queuing times

	 Enhanced real time service 			 

	 information

	 Journey planning tools

	 A simplified pricing structure

18

Images supplied by stakeholders and partners including 
Highways England, Network Rail, local authorities, councils, 
LEP’s and businesses for full details please see the Draft 
Strategic Transport Plan.

P
age 12



 
 

 

 

 

 

Transport for the North 
Strategic Transport Plan 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - 
Executive Summary 
Transport for the North 

January 2018 
  

 
 

 

Page 13

ghalsall001_1
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary 

 

 
 

 
  
Atkins   Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary  
 

Notice 

This document and its contents have been prepared and are intended solely for Transport for the North’s 
information and use in relation to the Integrated Sustainability Appraisal of the Transport for the North 
Strategic Transport Plan.  

Atkins Limited assumes no responsibility to any other party in respect of or arising out of or in connection 
with this document and/or its contents. 

Document history 

Job number:  5153450 Document ref:  TfN STP ISA – Executive Summary 

Revision Purpose description Originated Checked Reviewed Authorised Date 

Rev 1.0 Final (For Consultation) ISA Team PMcE MH MH 11/01/18 

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

Client signoff 

Client Transport for the North 

 

Project Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan 

 

Document title Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary 

 

Job no. 5153450 

 

Copy no.  

 

Document 
reference 

  

 

 

  

  

Page 14



Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary 

 

 
 

 
  
Atkins   Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary  
 

Table of contents 

Chapter Pages 

Abbreviations 4 

Executive summary 5 
 
 

 

Page 15



Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary 

 

 
 

 
  
Atkins   Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary  
 

Abbreviations 

  

AONB Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

BaU Business as Usual 

CAV Connected and Autonomous Vehicles 

CfBT Campaign for Better Transport 

CPRE Campaign to Protect Rural England 

CSA Community Safety Assessment 

DCLG Department for Communities and Local Government 

DfT Department for Transport 

EqIA Equality Impact Assessment 

ER Environmental Report 

EV Electric Vehicle 

GHG Greenhouse Gas 

GVA Gross Value Added 

HGV Heavy Goods Vehicle 

HIA Health Impact Assessment 

HRA Habitats Regulation Assessment 

HS2 High Speed Two 

ISA Integrated Sustainability Appraisal 

LEP Local Enterprise Partnership 

LZEV Low / Zero Emission Vehicle 

NGO Non-Governmental Organisation 

NPIER Northern Powerhouse Independent Economic Review 

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 

ODPM Office of the Deputy Prime Minister 

PCG Protected Characteristic Group 

PPPs Plans, Policies and Programmes 

pSPA Potential Special Protection Area 

SAC Special Area of Conservation 

cSAC Candidate Special Area of Conservation 

SDC Strategic Development Corridor 

SEA Strategic Environmental Assessment 

SPA Special Protection Area 

SSSI Site of Special Scientific Interest 

STB Statutory Transport Body 

STP Strategic Transport Plan 

SuDS Sustainable Drainage Systems 

TAG Transport Analysis Guidance 

TfN Transport for the North 

WHS World Heritage Site 

Page 16



Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary 

 

 
 

 
  
Atkins   Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary  
 

Executive summary 

This is the Executive Summary of the Integrated Sustainability Appraisal (ISA) Report of the Transport for the 
North (TfN) Strategic Transport Plan for the North of England. The purpose of this Executive Summary is to 
set out the ISA process and the outcomes derived from this and is intended to inform people who have a 
general interest in the Transport Strategy, but who are not concerned with its detailed technical assessment. 
Readers are advised to read the full contents of the ISA Report for more detailed information if required. 

 

TfN is empowered by a pan-Northern Partnership representing political and business leaders from all parts 
of Northern England, to develop a Strategic Transport Plan (STP) for the North to prioritise investments to 
improve the capacity, frequency, speed and reliability of the region’s transport network. This will be a multi-
modal plan for passengers, businesses and freight, which will set out integrated transport connectivity 
priorities to 2050. It is anticipated that the STP will allow the fulfilment of the vision for “A thriving North of 
England, where modern transport connections drive economic growth and support an excellent quality of 
life”.  

 

Four objectives have been set for the STP. These are: 

 

1. Transforming economic performance 
2. Promote and support the built and natural environment 
3. Improve opportunities across the north 
4. Increase efficiency, reliability and resilience in the transport system. 

 

All these objectives carry equal weight under the STP, with no objective greater or lesser than any other 
objective and the STP provides detail on how the vision and the aims of the objectives will be met. This detail 
is set out in a series of Strategic Components as follows: 

 

• Connecting people 

• Connecting businesses 

• Moving goods 

• Ensuring a sustainable investment programme 

• Rail North Long Term Strategy 

• Northern Powerhouse Rail 

• Integrated and Smart Travel 

 

The STP also sets out a series of Strategic Development Corridors (SDCs): 

 

• SDC 1 – Connecting the Energy Coasts: Improving connectivity for people and goods between the 
nationally significant non-carbon energy and research assets located in Cumbria, Lancashire, North 
Yorks, North East and Tees Valley 

• SDC 2 - West and Wales: Improving connectivity for people and goods, to, from and through the 
important economic centres and assets of Cheshire, Liverpool City Region and Greater Manchester, with 
strategic connectivity in to North Wales and the Midlands. 

• SDC 3 – Central Pennines: Improving strategic east-west connectivity for some of the North’s important 
economic centres and assets in North Yorks, West Yorks, Hull and Humber through to Greater 
Manchester, Lancashire and Liverpool City Region. 

• SDC 4 – Southern Pennines: Improving the strategic east-west, multi-modal connectivity between the 
important economic centres, assets and ports within Liverpool City Region, Greater Manchester, 
Sheffield City Region, Hull and Humber as well as cross border to the Midlands. 

• SDC 5 - North West to Sheffield City Region: Strengthening rail connectivity between the advanced 
manufacturing clusters and assets in Cumbria, Lancashire, Greater Manchester and Sheffield City 
Region 

Page 17



Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary 

 

 
 

 
  
Atkins   Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary  
 

• SDC 6 – East Coast to Scotland: Strengthening rail connectivity along the East Coast Main Line and 
other parallel rail lines, such as Durham Coast Line, to provide enhanced strategic and local connectivity 
in the North East, Tees Valley and North Yorks. 

• SDC 7 – Yorkshire to Scotland: Strengthening road connectivity between Midlands, South Yorks, West 
Yorks, North Yorks, Tees Valley and North East and Scotland, building on existing road investment 
commitments. 

 

1.1. The purpose of the ISA 
 

Whilst it is important that the STP delivers the vision for a thriving north of England, it is also important that 
this is done is a way which protects the environment, protects the human health and allows as many different 
people as possible the same opportunities for accessing the facilities and services they require whilst 
promoting sustainable economic growth. Therefore, the STP has been subjected to a series of assessments 
that cover the topics of Sustainability and Strategic Environmental Assessment (SA/SEA), Health Impact 
Assessment (HIA) and Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) and Community Safety Assessment (CSA). It is 
also important to note that as there is a potential that the Transport Strategy could lead to a direct or indirect 
effect on sites which have been designated at the European level for nature conservation purposes (such as 
Special Areas of Conservation), a Habitats Regulation Assessment (HRA) was also carried out. Taken 
together these various assessments are described as an ‘Integrated Sustainability Appraisal’ (ISA). 

 

The new STP is not starting with ‘a blank sheet of paper’. There is a current transport network across the 
north of England that has been developed over many years and is the result of previous strategies and 
investment decisions. This transport network already has an effect on the environment, on people’s health 
and their equality of opportunity. The ongoing investment in and maintenance of this current existing network 
has been defined as the ‘Business as Usual’ scenario under this STP.  

 

An ISA Framework has been defined, consisting of a series of objectives, against which the sustainability 
performance of the STP has been assessed. These ISA Objectives are:  

 

1. Reduce greenhouse gas emissions from transport overall, with particular emphasis on road 
transport 

2. Protect and enhance biodiversity, geodiversity and the green infrastructure network 
3. Conserve and enhance the international sites (HRA specific objective) 
4. Protect and enhance air quality 
5. Increase resilience of the transport network to extreme weather events and a changing 

climate 
6. Protect and enhance the inland and coastal water environment 
7. Protect and conserve soil and remediate / avoid land contamination 
8. Support the conservation and enhancement of the quality and distinctiveness of historic 

assets, industrial and cultural heritage and their settings 
9. Protect and enhance the character and quality of landscapes and townscapes 
10. Promote the prudent use of natural resources, minimise the production of waste and support 

re-use and recycling 
11. Enhance lower carbon, affordable transport choice 
12. Enhance long term economic prosperity and promote economic transformation 
13. Coordinate land use and strategic transport planning across the region 
14. Promote greater equality of opportunity for all citizens, with the desired outcome of achieving 

a fairer society (EqIA specific objective) 
15. Improve health and well-being for all citizens and reduce inequalities in health (HIA specific 

objective) 
16. Promote community safety and reduce crime and fear of crime for all citizens (CSA specific 

objective) 
 
In addition to the above ISA Objectives, a series of sub-objectives relating to HIA, EqIA and CSA have also 
been defined. These are: 
 

Page 18



Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary 

 

 
 

 
  
Atkins   Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary  
 

EqIA  

• Improve accessibility to services, facilities and amenities for all 

• Improve affordability of transport 

• Improve road safety and reduce the number of accidents and other incidents 

• Reduce severance 

• Reduce environmental impacts of transport – air and noise pollution 
 
HIA 

• Improve accessibility to services, facilities and amenities for all 

• Improve affordability of transport 

• Improve road safety and reduce the number of accidents and other incidents 

• Reduce severance 

• Reduce environmental impacts of transport – vibration and air, noise and light pollution 
 
CSA 

• Improve road safety and reduce the number of accidents and other incidents 

• Improve actual and perceived safety and security issues 
 
 
A series of questions to help aid the assessment and the interpretation of each Objective were also 
identified. These questions and the ISA Objectives together make up the ISA Framework against which the 
STP was assessed.  
 

2. Compatibility between STP Objectives 
and ISA Objectives  

In the early stages of the development of the STP, it was important to ensure that the four objectives of the 
Plan were well aligned with the ISA Objectives and therefore an assessment of their compatibility was 
carried out.  
 
The results of the initial assessment of compatibility indicated that while there were several areas where 
there was a degree of compatibility between the two sets of objectives, overall it was concluded that there 
was a considerable level of uncertainty / unclear outcomes relating to overall compatibility. It was therefore 
recommended that there were a number of areas where the STP Objectives could be strengthened to 
ensure sustainability was more comprehensively established. In particular, it was noted that the STP could 
be strengthened significantly in relation to GHG emissions, air quality and protection of the natural and built 
environment. Overall, it was proposed that the STP would benefit strongly from more detail, or a more 
focused commitment, on how it is intended that each STP Objective will address issues of sustainability.  
 
Following further development of the STP and consideration of the ISA findings, greater clarification was 
introduced in the draft STP as to how the plan would ensure that each STP Objective was fulfilled. The 
results of assessment of the updated draft STP indicated that there was a substantial degree of compatibility 
between the two sets of objectives, with only a very small number of areas of potential conflict indicated. 
There were still areas where there was some degree of uncertainty as to the compatibility of the objectives. 
These areas offered the potential to be compatible dependent upon the implementation measures proposed 
through development of the STP Strategic Components and other elements of the plan. 
 
The main areas of uncertainty identified in the assessment, as well as areas of potential conflict, related to 
the STP Objective to ‘Transform Economic Performance’. This was not entirely surprising as probable 
interventions arising from implementation of this objective have the potential for both negative and positive 
environmental outcomes. However, the updated STP included a strengthened Objective to ‘Promote and 
support built and natural environment’ which, as noted above, carries equal weight to the other STP 
Objectives. This ‘cross cutting’ Objective should help to ensure that areas of uncertainty, or areas of potential 
conflict, can be addressed as further implementation details are set out in the developing STP. In short, 
implementation of this ‘cross cutting’ Objective provides a strong imperative in the STP for maximising 
sustainable outcomes. The compatibility assessment therefore concluded that the revised STP Objectives 

Page 19



Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary 

 

 
 

 
  
Atkins   Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary  
 

provided a firm underpinning to help ensure that the sustainability performance of the plan could be 
maximised.  
 
 

3. Assessment of Strategic Alternatives 

The STP contains a set of four Strategic Alternatives, termed scenarios. These scenarios were developed 
through a foresighting approach to explicitly capture the uncertainty surrounding future outcomes, with the 
future scenarios representing the potential variation in the key assumptions that drive travel demand. The 
assumptions have been grouped so that each scenario represents a coherent and plausible future. No one 
scenario is more likely than another, but taken together they represent the likely range of outcomes in travel 
demand in the North. It should be noted that TfN’s Partners can help shape these scenarios through their 
land use and transport plans, as well as the digital infrastructure they provide. However, it should also be 
recognised that these are not totally within their control. The four scenarios are: 
 

• Scenario 1 – Compact and Digital 

• Scenario 2 – Compact and Travel Friendly 

• Scenario 3 – Dispersed and Digital 

• Scenario 4 – Dispersed and Travel Friendly 
 
In addition to the above scenarios, a Business as Usual scenario was developed to allow comparison to be 
made in the assessment with the anticipated evolution of the environment in the absence of the STP. An 
overview of the assessment results is as follows: 
 

Plan Element ISA Objective 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

Alternative Scenarios 

Business as Usual + + ? ++ -- - +/- + - + - + - + + - 

Transformational Scenario 1 – Compact & Digital ++ + ? ++ + ++ + + + ++ ++ ++ + ++ ++ ++ 

Transformational Scenario 2 – Compact & Travel 
Friendly 

+ + ? + + + + + +/- + ++ ++
+ 

+ ++ ++ + 

Transformational Scenario 3 – Dispersed and Digital ++ +/- ? ++ +/- +/- - +/- +/- - +/- +/- + + + + 

Transformational Scenario 4 – Dispersed & Travel 
Friendly 

+ +/- ? - - - -- +/- -- -- -- +/-. + + + + 

 
Key: 

Scale Category 

+++ Large beneficial 

++ Moderate beneficial 

+ Slight beneficial 

0 Neutral 

- Slight adverse 

-- Moderate adverse 

--- Strong adverse 

? Uncertain 

+/- Combination of beneficial and adverse 

 
 
From an overall sustainability perspective it was found that Scenario 1 (Compact & Digital) performed best.  
 
In this Scenario, as with all the other scenarios, there is one key area of uncertainty which relates to the 
need to protect sites designated for nature conservation. This uncertainty relates to the fact that at this stage 
of Plan development, in the absence of more detailed information, it was not possible to ascertain the nature 
of potential effects, as this will depend upon the type and location of interventions. Performance against all 
other ISA Objectives under Scenario 1 is anticipated to be either slight beneficial or moderate beneficial. 

Page 20



Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary 

 

 
 

 
  
Atkins   Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary  
 

 
Environmentally, Scenario 1 benefits particularly from the compact urban form which allows greater 
opportunities for walking and cycling, an expected uptake of Low/Zero Emission Vehicles (LZEVs), reduced 
greenfield land take (and therefore less disturbance to habitats, soils, the water environment, etc.), and the 
minimisation of waste and use of resources, and allows easier enhancement of lower carbon, affordable 
transport choices.  
 
This Scenario also benefits socially and economically with, for example, an increase in Connected and 
Autonomous Vehicles (CAVs) benefitting those who cannot drive, especially for medical reasons such as 
visual impairments. Increased opportunities for walking and cycling should improve access to services 
including healthcare for all groups. Digital connections would also improve access to some services, 
replacing the need to travel, and this reduced need to travel will also have a beneficial effect in reducing 
travel impacts such as severance. Reduced traffic and congestion due to mode shift should also have a 
beneficial effect on road safety and severance. An increase in CAVs may also improve road safety, avoiding 
human error. An increase in use of LZEVs should help to mitigate the impact of road traffic, with reduced air 
pollution and noise pollution which would have a particular impact on the health of children and people with 
breathing conditions. Improved interchanges should make multi-stage journeys easier and should also have 
an impact on the perception of security with improved lighting and surveillance, which would have a 
particular impact for women, children, the elderly and minority ethnic groups. 
 
The worst performing alternative, in overall sustainability terms, is Scenario 4 (Dispersed and Travel 
Friendly). In this Scenario, the dispersed urban form means that there are likely moderate adverse effects on 
landscapes, due to the increased need for cross country transport interventions, with additional potential for 
congestion in urban centres. This scenario would also have implications for the use of resources and waste 
generation and would make enhancing lower carbon, affordable transport choice more difficult. There would 
also be an increased amount of greenfield land take under this scenario, with adverse implications for soil 
(including a potential for contamination), as well as the water environment. It is also anticipated that, long 
term, this scenario will be subject to the worst effects of a changing climate in terms of resilience of the 
transport network. 
 
It is not the purpose of the ISA to decide the alternative to be pursued. This is the role of the decision makers 
who will consider the precise strategy to be taken forward. The ISA provides information on the relative 
sustainability performance of the strategic alternatives and helps enhance the transparency of the decision 
making process. It should also be noted that TfN in itself cannot prescribe the future scenario, though the 
STP will be expected to influence and inform future planning decisions. It is also the case that while TfN and 
Partners can help shape future scenarios, for example through land use and transport plans and the 
provision of digital infrastructure, external influencing factors mean that these future scenarios are not totally 
within their control.  
 

4. Assessment of Strategic Components 

The STP contains a series of seven Strategic Components, each of which was subject to assessment. The 
Strategic Components are:  
 

• Connecting People – improving access to work opportunities, giving businesses access to a wider labour 
market and improving access to leisure and tourism assets. 

• Connecting businesses – improving connections to collaborators, clients and competitors, including 
those within the prime and enabling capabilities 

• Moving goods – supporting businesses to move freight and goods in efficient, multi-modal ways. 

• Ensuring a sustainable investment programme – working toward delivery of sustainable transport in the 
North 

• Integrated and Smart Travel 

• Northern Powerhouse Rail 

• Rail North – Long Term Strategy 
 
In undertaking the assessments of the Strategic Components, it was important to understand the types of 
intervention which could result from implementation of each. The full list of assumed potential intervention 
types is listed below. Not all of these intervention types are relevant to every Strategic Component. 

Page 21



Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary 

 

 
 

 
  
Atkins   Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary  
 

 

Highways 

• New highway links 

• Highway infrastructure improvements 

• Smart highways / adaptive network 

Railways 

• New rail links 

• Rail infrastructure improvements 

• New stations 

• Station upgrades (including Park & Ride) 

Public transport (excluding rail) 

• Park and ride schemes 

• Station and interchange works 

Enabling infrastructure 

• EV facilitating 

• Smart / adaptive roads 

• Digital connectivity  

Waterways 

• Inland and coastal port upgrades 

• Use of canals 
 

An overview of the assessment results is as follows: 
 

Plan Element ISA Objective 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

Strategic Components 

Connecting People - +/- ? + + - +/- +/- -- - ++
+ 

++
+ 

++
+ 

++ ++ ++ 

Connecting Business - +/- ? - + - +/- +/- -- - - ++
+ 

++ ++ ++ + 

Moving Goods - +/- ? - + - +/- +/- +/- ++ ++ ++ + + ++ ? 

Ensuring a sustainable investment programme ++
+ 

+ + ++
+ 

++
+ 

++ ++ + + ++ ++
+ 

++ ++
+ 

++ ++ ++ 

Integrated and Smart Travel ++ + + ++ ++ + + + +/- + ++
+ 

++ + + + + 

Northern Powerhouse Rail ++ + ? ++ -- - + + + + + ++
+ 

++ ++ ++ + 

Rail North ++ + ? ++ -- + + + + + ++ ++
+ 

++
+ 

++ ++ ++ 

 
Key: 

Scale Category 

+++ Large beneficial 

++ Moderate beneficial 

+ Slight beneficial 

0 Neutral 

- Slight adverse 

-- Moderate adverse 

--- Strong adverse 

? Uncertain 

+/- Combination of beneficial and adverse 

Page 22



Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary 

 

 
 

 
  
Atkins   Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary  
 

 

The assessment results identify a number of areas of strength, in terms of sustainability performance, for 
each of the Strategic Components. This is particularly the case for those ISA Objectives related more to the 
issues of economy, equality, health and community safety, and is to be expected due to the nature of the 
STP. The plan has a key aim to help drive transformational economic growth across the North. The Strategic 
Components are designed to support this transformation by facilitating and enhancing movement of people 
and goods across all transport modes. This is reflected in the scores relating to the above mentioned ISA 
Objectives.  

At the same time, it is also inherent in the nature of the STP that it will result in a series of transport 
infrastructure interventions, which in many cases will require considerable civil and other engineering works 
across large areas. The nature of these works has environmental implications in particular. For example, 
new roads could involve a direct loss of wildlife habitat, or could have an adverse effect on the water 
environment through pollution incidents during construction or through polluted runoff during operation and 
would also result in new features in the landscape. The nature of this type of potential effect has, not 
unexpectedly, resulted in some of the Strategic Components scoring adversely against certain ISA 
Objectives.  

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, alongside poor air quality, are areas of particular concern in relation to 
any transport plan. However, the assessment found that the STP, while recognising the need for continued 
and expanded road transportation (which currently accounts for a substantial proportion of transport related 
GHG and other air pollutant emissions), also recognises that there is a need to encourage passengers to 
choose rail over cars for shorter and longer journeys, and that improvements can also be made at a local 
level to connect bus and cycle provision with the wider transport network. The measures outlined to achieve 
this modal shift, including those set out in the Strategic Component ‘Integrated and Smart Travel’, should 
help to result in lower overall GHG emissions per travel kilometre as well as improvements in air quality 
across the region in the medium/long term, with absolute reductions in GHG emissions in the long term. The 
expected uptake of Low / Zero Emission Vehicles (LZEVs), over the life of the plan, should also result in 
significant reductions in GHG and other air pollutant emissions.  

Both Northern Powerhouse Rail and Rail North’s Long Term Rail Strategy Strategic Components, on the 
whole, perform better in the environmental elements of the ISA than the Strategic Components Connecting 
People, Connecting Business and Moving Goods. This is to be expected given their focus on rail, as 
opposed to the large road components which are a feature of the latter components, though it is noted that 
these rail components perform less well (moderate adverse) in terms of resilience to a changing climate.  

Negative impacts on biodiversity are another key area of concern in relation to any transport plan. New 
transport interventions have the potential to impact on designated and non-designated sites of ecological or 
geological value and more generally on the network of linked multi-functional green spaces, comprising the 
local green infrastructure. These impacts could occur through direct land take for infrastructure (which may 
also cause fragmentation of habitats and/or notable and protected species populations), construction and 
operational disturbance (noise, vibration, light pollution, etc.) and emissions / contamination (air, water and 
soil). However, opportunities could be provided for enhancement of biodiversity, for example through 
planting of native species as part of any screening of infrastructure. Anticipated effects across all Strategic 
Components are a mix of beneficial and adverse and are dependent upon the nature and location of 
interventions.   

One important aspect to note is that in relation to sites designated for nature conservation (including those at 
the International level such as SPA, SAC and Ramsar sites), it is not possible at this stage of plan 
development to ascertain effects on these. Therefore, anticipated effects on these sites, across all Strategic 
Components, were noted as uncertain.  

In terms of impacts on health, equalities and safety, it is anticipated that enhanced infrastructure to increase 
connectivity for people and goods across the North should have overall beneficial effects, in terms of 
accessibility to jobs and services. This forms a theme across all the Strategic Components. Services could 
include health, community and social care services. There is no specific fare structure mentioned in any of 
the Strategic Components, but simplifying, integrating and enhancing the ticketing system as well as 
enhancing choice of travel is likely to have some beneficial effects on affordability, as mentioned in the Smart 

Page 23



Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary 

 

 
 

 
  
Atkins   Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary  
 

and Integrated Travel Component. This would be particularly important for those with lower incomes or living 
in more deprived areas. 

Any enhancements to rail infrastructure could support a mode shift from road to rail, and therefore help 
reduce severance, air and noise pollution on certain road corridors. This is particularly important in the 
Northern Powerhouse Rail and Rail North Long Term Strategy Strategic Components. However, any 
enhancements in road connections which could attract increased amounts of road traffic, particularly Heavy 
Goods Vehicles (HGVs), to more densely populated areas or areas with higher levels of vulnerable 
populations, could increase air and noise pollution, as well as severance, effects in local areas. This could 
particularly affect those with mobility limiting health problems such as asthma and disabilities.  

Improved levels of perceived community safety could be brought about by enhancements in interchanges. It 
is important that these are well lit and have good visibility to ensure those more susceptible to fear of crime 
feel safe. This is important for all the Strategic Components. 

The Strategic Component ‘Ensuring a sustainable investment programme’ has the effect of acting in a ‘cross 
cutting’ fashion in that the elements of this Component apply across all aspects of the STP. This Strategic 
Component scored for the most part either moderate beneficial or large beneficial against ISA Objectives, 
and this would act to address many of the issues which resulted in other Strategic Components scoring less 
well. For example, the Strategic Component ‘Ensuring a sustainable investment programme’ specifically 
notes that TfN wish to encourage design, construction, repair and maintenance of transport infrastructure 
that respects and enhances the North’s landscape character and townscapes. This Component also states 
that TfN will seek to ensure that design principles are implemented in the development process for 
interventions on the Major Road Network and across the North’s rail network that will address the full range 
of ISA Objectives.  

In addition to acting to address many of the identified adverse elements of the STP, the Strategic 
Component ‘Ensuring a sustainable investment programme’, through its cross cutting nature, will also act to 
bolster already well performing areas. This is a major feature of the STP that should influence potential 
effects throughout the plan period to ensure that benefits are maximised where possible and adverse effects 
addressed as appropriate. 

A key element of the ‘Ensuring a sustainable investment programme’ Strategic Component is the emphasis 
given to the number and extent of statutory and non-statutory sites that are protected due to their importance 
for nature conservation. This importance is specifically recognised in the Component which also states that 
TfN have committed to work with partners to avoid and / or minimise any adverse effects on important nature 
conservation sites as far as possible.  The Component also states that any potential direct or indirect impacts 
on these sites that arise from new and or upgraded transport interventions will be appropriately assessed, 
mitigated and / or compensated for, in line with existing best practice and relevant legislation across the 
lifespan of the Plan. This would include for European designated sites where necessary and Habitats 
Regulation Assessment if required.   

Although not specifically noted under any of the Strategic Components, it is also important to recognise that 
the STP does note that any interventions which come about through the implementation of the STP will be 
subject to further consideration and assessment (see Page 85 of the STP). Alongside that for technical and 
financial issues, the Plan recognises that it will be a key aim to minimise the impact of transport on the built 
and natural environment, as well as the health and wellbeing of residents, workers and visitors to the North. 
The STP states that in the development of any intervention, the environmental, health and social aspects will 
be assessed at an appropriate level for that stage of the design or planning. It is also noted that 
assessments could include Environmental Impact Assessment, environmental considerations, or in the case 
of European Sites, Habitat Regulation Assessment. It can also be seen that environmental issues will be 
addressed through construction and operation of interventions, through the effective implementation of 
Environmental Management Plans. It is recommended that these assessments and plans are informed by 
the list of generic mitigation measures that have been noted for each intervention type and which are listed in 
Appendix I. 

Page 24



Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary 

 

 
 

 
  
Atkins   Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary  
 

5. Assessment of Strategic Development 
Corridors (SDCs) 

The assessment results identify a number of areas across the SDCs where anticipated effects are likely to 
be similar. In particular, it is important to note in relation to sites designated for nature conservation, that 
there is a high level of uncertainty relating to how interventions within the SDCs may affect these sites. This 
issue will be addressed within the Habitats Regulation Assessment.  

Other areas of similarity across the SDC assessments relate to economic development and coordination of 
land use and strategic transport planning across the region. These similarities are to be expected as a core 
thrust of all the SDCs is to help ensure a transformational scenario develops and the approach to land use 
planning will also be similar across the corridors. There are variations in the land use planning coordination 
scores as it is recognised that, in some instances, effective coordination could be made more difficult due to 
the size of the SDC and the number of local authorities within the corridor. In relation to three of the SDCs, 
there will also be a need for cross border coordination with authorities in Scotland and Wales.  

The analysis of projected movement showed that, for both road and rail, within most SDCs there was a 
moderate or high increase in movement by 2050, relative to today. Road movement represents by far the 
largest modal share across all SDCs, and in particular for SDC 1 Connecting the Energy Coasts.  

For all SDCs, GHG emissions from road movement are anticipated to grow in the short term, up to 15% in 
the case of SDC 1, relative to today. By the medium term, for most of the SDCs there was an overall (small) 
drop in GHG emissions relative to today, or a declining trend in emissions relative to the short term. By 2050, 
however, for all SDCs a large overall reduction in GHG emissions from road movement is anticipated, 
relative to current conditions. This is due in large part to the anticipated uptake of LZEVs, along with 
concurrent continuing decarbonisation of the electrical grid.  

The supporting analyses showed that, while as a percentage of overall movement rail travel is small, overall 
medium to high level growth in rail movement is anticipated by the 2050s. SDC 1 Connecting the Energy 
Coasts and SDC 2 West and Wales are anticipated to see the lowest growth in rail movement, relative to the 
other SDCs.  

The very considerable growth in rail movement across a number of the SDCs is reflected in the anticipated 
overall increase in GHG emissions from rail movement over the period to 2050, particularly for SDC 6 East 
Coast to Scotland and SDC 7 Yorkshire to Scotland which are anticipated to have the highest growth in GHG 
emissions relative to the other SDCs. This growth in emissions is anticipated despite continuing rail efficiency 
improvements, electrification and grid decarbonisation, which should result in considerably lower emissions 
per passenger kilometre.  

The growth in movement for both road and rail across the time period 2035 to 2050 has implications across 
a number of the environmental ISA Objectives for all of the SDCs. For example, an increase in road based 
travel can make protecting the water environment more difficult, or it may lead to a requirement for more 
roads, or upgraded roads which can have implications for landscape and townscape, or there may a loss of 
soil resources and a greater chance of contamination. These potential adverse effects are reflected in the 
performance of the SDCs against the ISA Objectives related to these aspects. It will thus be important to 
ensure that mitigation or other measures to protect the environment set out in in the STP are implemented. 
In particular, the measures outlined in the STP Strategic Component ‘Ensuring a sustainable investment 
programme’, and the need for additional studies as noted in the STP, will be key to ensuring sustainable 
development of potential interventions.  

In terms of equalities, the SDCs are anticipated to be likely to result in improved accessibility to jobs and 
services throughout the North for a wide range of groups. This is particularly important for those in low 
income areas (such as Liverpool, Manchester, Tees Valley and the North East), or for other groups with 
constrained access to jobs and services. Actual impacts are dependent on the specific road and public 
transport corridor improvements.  

Page 25



Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary 

 

 
 

 
  
Atkins   Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary  
 

Public transport improvements are likely to have beneficial effects on severance, air and noise pollution and 
overall road safety, with relevance to all SDCs except SDC 7. This is because increasing the attractiveness 
of public transport could encourage a mode shift from private motorised to public transport. This is 
particularly important for vulnerable populations, such as children, the elderly and those with disabilities and 
mobility limiting health problems. Areas in the North such as Greater Manchester, Liverpool City Region, 
Tees Valley and North East have high health deprivation and disability levels. However, any road 
improvements, whilst improving connectivity to jobs and services for a range of groups could also result in 
increased severance, noise and air pollution, as well as potentially detrimental effects on safety. This is 
especially relevant for SDC 7, which is a road improvement corridor, but could also be relevant to SDCs 1 - 4 
as they are multi-modal. It will be important to ensure, when enhancing or developing local transport links, 
full assessment and mitigation for potential air and noise pollution and severance effects.  

Improving and modernising interchanges and public transport facilities, in line with national standards (e.g. 
lighting, CCTV), is likely to reduce perceived fear of crime. Potential interventions including interchange 
improvements are relevant to all SDCs. It is also important to consider the road safety surrounding of any 
interchanges. Whilst enhancement of public transport may reduce the number of road vehicles on certain 
road corridors, enhanced interchanges may attract a larger number of road vehicles to the local area, 
therefore likely increasing local air and noise pollution and severance.   

An overview of the assessment results is as follows: 

Plan Element ISA Objective 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

SDC 1 – Connecting the Energy Coasts + - ? - - - - - - + -- + ++ + +/- + 

SDC 2 – West and Wales ++ +/- ? ++ + + - + + + ++ ++ ++
+ 

+ +/- + 

SDC 3 – Central Pennines + - ? - - - - +/- -- +/- + ++ + + +/- + 

SDC 4 – Southern Pennines + - ? + - - -- + +/- + + ++
+ 

++ + +/- + 

SDC 5 – North West to Sheffield City Region + +/- ? + - - -- +/- - +/- + ++ ++ + ++ + 

SDC 6 – East Coast to Scotland - +/- ? - - - - - -- +/- - ++
+ 

+ + ++ + 

SDC 7 – Yorkshire to Scotland - +/- ? - - - - - - +/- -- ++
+ 

+ + ++ +/- 

 

Key: 

Scale Category 

+++ Large beneficial 

++ Moderate beneficial 

+ Slight beneficial 

0 Neutral 

- Slight adverse 

-- Moderate adverse 

--- Strong adverse 

? Uncertain 

+/- Combination of beneficial and adverse 

 

6. Mitigation and Recommendations 

As part of the assessment process, a series of mitigation measures are identified and recommendations are 
made. A key recommendation from the ISA is that there is adequate cross referencing made in the STP 
between the various Strategic Components. In particular, it is recommended that extensive cross referencing 

Page 26



Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary 

 

 
 

 
  
Atkins   Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary  
 

is made to the ‘cross cutting’ Strategic Component ‘Ensuring a sustainable investment programme’, as this 
Component provides a solid basis upon which the sustainability of other elements of the STP can be built.  

Numerous mitigation measures are reported as part of the detailed assessment tables, but the following is 
an overview of what has been proposed for each ISA Objective.  

 

ISA Objective  Overview of Mitigation 

1. Reduce 
greenhouse gas 
emissions from 
transport overall, 
with particular 
emphasis on 
road transport 

Due to the potential threats posed by a changing climate and in order to meet 
Government commitments to reducing carbon emissions, measures should be 
taken to reduce the amount of carbon from our transport system. Reductions 
would mainly be from vehicles and can be found in many of the measures 
suggested to reduce air pollution emissions, but further reductions to the carbon 
footprint can be found in the construction and operation of transport network 
assets – for example by using more energy efficient lights. The carbon footprint 
can be readily measured at construction and operation by use of an appropriate 
carbon calculator.    

2. Protect and 
enhance 
biodiversity, 
geodiversity and 
the green 
infrastructure 
network 

Opportunities to enhance biodiversity and green infrastructure exist, through 
designing in biodiversity into schemes. These opportunities include, for example, 
the development of wildflower meadows along linear features such as roads and 
railway lines, which will look attractive and also provide opportunities for 
pollinators, or could include simple measures such as bird / bat boxes.  More 
complex measures such as animal over or under passes can be considered. 
Similarly, biodiversity can be enhanced by the planting of suitable / native species 
of trees and hedgerows. Properly planned maintenance schemes can also 
enhance biodiversity, for example from the active control of invasive species. 
Particular consideration needs to be made to protection measures in relation to 
any scheme which may impact directly, or indirectly, on any site designated for 
nature conservation purposes 

3. Conserve and 
enhance the 
international 
sites (HRA 
specific 
objective) 

Particular consideration needs to be made to protection measures in relation to 
any scheme which may impact directly, or indirectly, on any site designated for 
nature conservation purposes – particularly those designated as SSSI or Natura 
2000. 

4. Protect and 
enhance air 
quality 

It will be important to reduce emissions and protect air quality as much as possible. 
Mitigation measures may affect the project design, layout, construction, operation 
and/or may comprise measures to improve air quality in pollution hotspots beyond 
the immediate locality of the scheme. Measures could include, but are not limited 
to, changes to the route of the new scheme, changes to the proximity of vehicles to 
local receptors in the existing route, physical means including barriers to trap or 
better disperse emissions, and speed control. The implementation of mitigation 
measures may require working with partners to support their delivery. 

5. Increase 
resilience of the 
transport 
network to 
extreme weather 
events and a 
changing climate 

Flooding poses a particular risk to the transport network and this situation is likely 
to get worse with a changing climate. However, new infrastructure developments 
or improvements to existing infrastructure can also contribute to an additional flood 
risk elsewhere. Opportunities can be taken to lower flood risk by considering flood 
protection measures, improving flow routes, flood storage capacity and using 
Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS). The appropriate use of SuDS will be 
critical and it should be the intention that site layout and surface water drainage 
systems should cope with events that exceed the design capacity of the system, 
so that excess water can be safely stored on or conveyed from the site without 
adverse impacts.   Infrastructure should only be located in flood zones when there 
is no other option. 

6. Protect and 
enhance the 
inland and 
coastal water 
environment 

Impact on local water resources can be addressed through planning and design for 
the efficient use of water, including water recycling. Consideration should be given 
to the use of SuDS (including permeable paving), but it is also recognised that 
conventional drainage will play an important role. Protection and good pollution 
control measures are to be utilised during both construction and operation of 
transport schemes. 

7. Protect and 
conserve soil 
and remediate / 

Protection of soil resources, particularly those of higher quality / areas of better 
agricultural lands should always be considered – this could be done during 
scheme planning by careful route selection. If areas of good quality soil cannot be 

Page 27



Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary 

 

 
 

 
  
Atkins   Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary  
 

ISA Objective  Overview of Mitigation 

avoid land 
contamination 

avoided, care should be taken during construction to store topsoil for later reuse – 
either on site as landscaping or further afield. Opportunities should also be taken 
to utilise areas of previously developed land and to remediate contaminated land 
when possible. This could include the removal / appropriate treatment of any 
invasive species such as Japanese Knotweed. 

8. Support the 
conservation 
and 
enhancement of 
the quality and 
distinctiveness 
of historic 
assets, industrial 
and cultural 
heritage and 
their settings 

The historic environment includes all aspects of the environment resulting from the 
interaction between people and places through time, including all surviving 
physical remains of past human activity, whether visible, buried or submerged, and 
landscaped and planted or managed flora. Heritage assets may be buildings, 
monuments, sites, places, areas or landscapes. Consideration should be made of 
the character and setting of the heritage asset, its significance (and level of 
protection afforded to it), the potential for loss or harm and need for conservation. 
Opportunities should be taken when possible for the enhancement of heritage 
assets. It should also be noted that due to its nature, not all heritage features may 
be apparent at the planning / design stage and precautions for unexpected 
discovery should be taken – perhaps through an archaeological watching brief. 

9. Protect and 
enhance the 
character and 
quality of 
landscapes and 
townscapes 

Projects need to be designed carefully, taking account of the potential impact on 
the landscape. Reducing the scale of a project or making changes to its operation 
can help to avoid or mitigate the visual and landscape effects of a proposed 
project. Consideration during planning should also be given to appropriate siting, 
design of the scheme (including choice of materials) and landscaping schemes. 
Note that ideally native species should be used in any planting. Subject to 
appropriate planning, screening can also take place ‘off site’ e.g. by planting out 
gaps in tree lines / hedgerows. Particular consideration is to be given to conserving 
landscape and scenic beauty in any nationally designated areas, with 
encouragement given to avoiding these areas if possible. Opportunities for 
landscape enhancement should be taken when possible. 

10. Promote the 
prudent use of 
natural 
resources, 
minimise the 
production of 
waste and 
support re-use 
and recycling 

Consideration during design and construction of transport schemes should be 
given to the waste hierarchy of prevention, reuse, recycling and disposal. All waste 
should be handled in accordance to applicable waste management legislation and 
the emphasis should be to minimise the volume of waste produced and the volume 
sent for disposal, unless it can be demonstrated that this is the best environmental 
outcome. Consideration should be given to the use of Recycled materials in 
construction. 

11. Enhance lower 
carbon, 
affordable 
transport choice 

Congestion can be reduced in numerous ways. Examples include new junctions 
and highway improvements, though these measures often only provide short term 
fixes. Therefore, it is important that aspects such as Smart Infrastructure and 
Managed Highways and importantly, the development of more sustainable and 
active modes (such as cycling and walking) are taken. Improved communities, with 
better streetscapes and people friendly streets may also encourage people to 
leave their cars, thereby reducing road traffic / congestion. A further key 
component will be the full integration of bus and rail services to increase 
accessibility to the transport system. 

12. Enhance long 
term economic 
prosperity and 
promote 
economic 
transformation 

It is vital that the transport network provides and where possible improves, the 
access to employment opportunities and effectively connects business areas with 
residential areas. Connectivity between business and residential centres and key 
infrastructure such as Airports is a major consideration to be made, as is 
connectivity between urban centres across the region. Issues such as the 
attractiveness of the region as a better place to live and work can also influence 
and enhance inward investment or tourism and thereby increase employment 
opportunities across the region. 

13. Coordinate land 
use and 
strategic 
transport 
planning across 
the region 

All potential schemes will require adherence to the relevant planning requirements 
for any development in the region. As such consideration of these requirements 
will be made at the design stage of all schemes. 

14. Promote greater 
equality of 
opportunity for 

During the planning and design stages of any transport scheme, it is vital that 
consideration is given to the need for access to key public services such as health, 
education community and leisure facilities by all members of society. Access 

Page 28



Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary 

 

 
 

 
  
Atkins   Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary  
 

ISA Objective  Overview of Mitigation 

all citizens, with 
the desired 
outcome of 
achieving a 
fairer society 
(EqIA specific 
objective) 

should be considered in relation to all modes, with an emphasis on more active 
and sustainable types. Affordability should also be a key consideration, with a 
particular emphasis placed on effects on lower income groups. It should also be a 
priority to enhance access to key services for vulnerable groups. 

15. Improve health 
and well-being 
for all citizens 
and reduce 
inequalities in 
health (HIA 
specific 
objective) 

The consideration of health, well-being and community safety is critical as part of 
scheme planning and design and should include the introduction of the most 
modern and effective safety measures where proportionate. Safety considerations 
should apply to the construction phase, as well as when the transport infrastructure 
is operational. It should always be the consideration to minimise the risk of deaths 
or injury arising from the scheme and contribute to an overall improvement in 
societal safety levels. Consideration during scheme planning and design also has 
to be given to reducing emissions and other aspects such as noise, vibration dust, 
light pollution and severance which potentially effect health and well-being. Access 
to public services (health, education, community facilities, etc.) is also another key 
consideration. Where appropriate, there should be an education programme to 
explain new technologies, digital services and automated vehicles etc. to ensure 
people feel secure and confident in their use. Liaison with relevant community 
services, hospitals, education centres etc. should also be undertaken as 
appropriate. People should also be able to feel secure and safe and design should 
always consider the need to reduce / prevent crime. 

16. Promote 
community 
safety and 
reduce crime 
and fear of crime 
for all citizens 
(CSA specific 
objective) 

As per ISA Objective 15 above.  

 

7. Cumulative, Synergistic and Indirect 
Effects 

There is also a requirement to consider Cumulative, Synergistic and Indirect Effects of the STP. Secondary 
and Indirect effects are effects that are not a direct result of the plan, but occur away from the original effect 
or as the result of a complex pathway. Cumulative effects arise where several proposals individually may or 
may not have significant effects but in-combination have a significant effect due to spatial crowding or 
temporal overlap. Synergistic effects are when two or more effects act together to create effects greater than 
the simple sum of the effects acting alone.  

Anticipated cumulative, synergistic and indirect effects are as follows:  

Effects Causes Significance 

Air Quality It is considered that the STP will have a 
cumulative beneficial effect on air quality. 
This beneficial effect will be derived from 
integration of the travel network and 
delivery of better linkages, as well as the 
development and increased use of 
sustainable modes of transport. Uptake 
of LZEVs is also anticipated to bring 
major benefits to overall air quality. 

Anticipated medium to long term 
benefits as interventions are 
developed and uptake of LZEVs 
develops.  

Page 29



Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary 

 

 
 

 
  
Atkins   Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary  
 

Effects Causes Significance 

GHG emissions It is considered that the STP will help to 
result in a fall in GHG emissions due to 
integration of the travel network and 
delivery of better linkages, as well as the 
development and increased use of 
sustainable modes of transport. Uptake 
of LZEVs is also anticipated to bring 
major benefits.  

Anticipated medium to long term 
benefits as Interventions are 
developed and uptake of LZEVs 
develops. 

Biodiversity The STP and interventions derived from 
it would likely result in a mix of 
cumulative positive and negative effects 
on biodiversity.  

Anticipated positive and negative 
effects over the medium to long 
term as measures are 
implemented. 

Sites 
designated for 
nature 
conservation 
(European 
Sites) 

The STP and interventions derived from 
it could result in a mix of cumulative 
positive and negative effects on sites 
designated for nature conservation. It is 
not possible to quantify these at this 
stage of plan development.  

Potential for effects on sites 
designated for nature conservation 
(European sites) – requirement for 
Habitats Regulation Assessment 
to be undertaken at the 
appropriate stage. 

Landscapes / 
townscapes 

It is anticipated that interventions derived 
from the STP will result in a mix of 
adverse and positive effects on 
landscapes and townscapes across the 
north of England.  

Anticipated positive and negative 
effects over the medium to long 
term as interventions are 
implemented. 

Soil, agricultural 
resources and 
contaminated 
land 

There will be a range of cumulative 
positive and negative effects on soil, 
agricultural resources and contaminated 
land. For example, the development of 
the highway network provides an 
opportunity for positive effects relating to 
contaminated land, but it may also 
provide an opportunity for further land to 
become contaminated and could 
potentially lead to the loss of soil / 
agricultural resources. Effects will be 
experienced across the north of England.  

Anticipated positive and negative 
effects over the medium to long 
term as measures are 
implemented. 

Economic 
growth 

It is anticipated that the STP will act as a 
key driver for transformational economic 
growth across the north of England.  

Anticipated positive effects over 
the medium to long term as 
measures are implemented. 

Health and well-
being 

It is anticipated that the STP will act to 
promote health and well-being through 
providing greater access to services and 
employment opportunities.  

Anticipated positive effects over 
the medium to long term as 
measures are implemented. 

 

8. Monitoring 

There will be a need to monitor the implementation of the STP. As interventions are developed, it is 
important that decisions in relation to these are taken with the best information available. Therefore, following 
the assessments, a monitoring programme was developed to allow the early establishment of a causal link 
between the implementation of the STP and the likely significant effects (positive or negative). This will 
provide TfN and other relevant authorities the information to make appropriate and informed decisions and 
take appropriate action as soon as possible should the monitoring programme be adopted. It is also the 
purpose of the monitoring programme to help inform future iterations of the STP itself.  

Page 30



Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan 
Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary 

 

 
 

 
  
Atkins   Integrated Sustainability Appraisal Report - Executive Summary  
 

9. Next steps 

This ISA Report is being published for formal consultation with the Draft STP. The results of the formal public 
consultation exercise may well result in changes to the Draft STP and these may have implications for the 
ISA results. In addition, the consultation exercise may result in direct changes to the contents of the ISA 
Report. These will be reported in the Post Adoption Statement in the next stage of development of the STP 
and ISA following adoption of the Plan.  

10. Conclusions 

The ISA process carried out throughout the development of the STP has been thorough and comprehensive. 
Iterations of the STP have been subject to review by the ISA team and continuous dialogue has taken place 
with the Plan development team. It is considered that this has resulted in progressively enhanced 
incorporation of sustainability considerations through the various iterations of the draft STP up to and 
including the current draft consultation version, particularly in terms of aspects related to environmental 
protection and enhancement, improvements to health and community safety, and greater equality of 
opportunity. 

Based on the findings of the ISA, it is possible to draw a number of key conclusions with regards to the draft 
STP. These are outlined as follows.  

The STP should act as an important driver to help promote transformational economic growth across the 
region. This is evidenced by the strong performance throughout the assessment against ISA Objective 12 
‘Enhance long term economic prosperity and promote economic performance transformation’. This is to be 
expected, as this aspect is a cornerstone of the STP. Transformational economic growth will be particularly 
supported within the seven SDCs set out under the STP long term Investment Programme.  

The STP provides strong support to help ensure transformational economic growth is sustainable. The 
inclusion within the STP of the Strategic Component ‘Ensuring a sustainable investment programme’ has 
meant that many of the anticipated potential adverse sustainability effects from STP implementation can be 
effectively addressed by this Component, which should act as a cross-cutting underpinning for all STP 
elements.  

Ensuring the cross-cutting ‘Ensuring a sustainable investment programme’ Strategic Component is fully 
implemented will be of critical importance to the overall sustainability of STP outcomes, as it is inherent in the 
nature of any transport plan that it will result in a series of transport infrastructure interventions, which in 
many cases will require extensive engineering works across large areas. The nature of these works that 
there will be environmental implications in particular. For example, new roads could involve a direct loss of 
wildlife habitat, or could have an adverse effect on the water environment through pollution incidents during 
construction or through polluted runoff during operation and would also result in new features in the 
landscape.  

Potential effects on landscapes and townscapes is an aspect of the assessment where the STP has 
consistently performed less well across all Plan elements. This is, again, partly a result of the inherent nature 
of many transport schemes, i.e. they are significant features across a wide area. It is recommended that 
greater consideration is given to the need to protect and enhance landscape and townscape in future 
iterations of the STP.  

Similarly, potential adverse effects on biodiversity present another area of concern in relation to any 
transport plan. New transport interventions have the potential to adversely impact designated and non-
designated sites of ecological or geological value and more generally on the network of linked multi-
functional green spaces, comprising the local green infrastructure. These impacts could occur through direct 
land take for infrastructure (which may also cause fragmentation of habitats and / or notable and protected 
species populations) and construction and operational disturbance (noise, vibration, light pollution, etc.) and 
emissions / contamination (air, water and soil). 

Page 31



 

© Atkins Ltd except where stated otherwise. 
 
The Atkins logo, ‘Carbon Critical Design’ and the strapline 
‘Plan Design Enable’ are trademarks of Atkins Ltd. 
 

Atkins Limited 
The Exchange 
2nd Floor 
3 New York Street 
Manchester 
M1 4HN 
 

Page 32



 

1 

       
 

Draft Strategic Transport Plan and Independent Integrated Sustainability 

Appraisal Consultation 
 

This consultation will run from 16 January to 17 April 2018. 

 

Transport for the North has commissioned Ipsos MORI, an independent agency, to collect and analyse 

the results. 

 

Before answering any of the consultation questions, please read the consultation document entitled 

Draft Strategic Transport Plan which is available at www.transportforthenorth.com/stp. Please also 

read the Integrated Sustainability Appraisal which is available at www.transportforthenorth.com/stp.   

 

As part of this consultation, we are asking stakeholders, businesses, transport users, the public and other 

interested parties to provide their views and complete this Response Form.   

 

Please return your completed form, along with any further written comments you wish to submit, to the 

following freepost address: 

 

TfN Draft Transport Plan Consultation 

Ipsos MORI North 

Freepost Admail 4275 

MANCHESTER 

M60 1HE 

 

Transport for the North cannot accept responsibility for responses that are sent to any address other 

than the one stated above.  

 

Please tick the box(es) as appropriate and write your responses clearly in black pen within the 

appropriate sections. If your response is too large to fit into the boxes, please attach additional evidence. 

If you do so, please make it clear which questions you are answering and number any additional pages 

you send. 

 

If you have any questions please email transportplanconsultation@ipsos-mori.com or leave a 

message by calling the enquiries line on 0808 141 3058. Please note we cannot deal with questions 

about the consultation document itself, these should be directed to Transport for the North. 

 

Information provided in response to this consultation, including personal information, may be subject to 

publication or disclosure in accordance with the access to information regimes (these are primarily the 

Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) 2000, the Data Protection Act (DPA) 1998, and the Environmental 

Information Regulations (EIR) 2004). Please note that any queries or complaints submitted via this 

process cannot be counted as part of the formal consultation. 

 

If you want information that you provide to be treated as confidential, please tick the box below. 

 

 I wish my response to be treated as confidential 

 

Thank you for your participation. 

Page 33

ghalsall001_2
Typewritten Text
Appendix C



 

2 

Background Information 

 

Qa. Which document are you responding to in this consultation? 

PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY 

 

 Draft Strategic Transport Plan (Please respond to questions 1a to 5c and Q7 onwards) 

 Independent Integrated Sustainability Appraisal (Please respond to Q6 only) 

 Both (Please respond to all questions in the document) 

 

 

The following questions will help us to understand the range of people and organisations who 

respond to the consultation(s). The information you provide will not be used for any purpose 

other than assessing responses to this consultation and for other reasons explained in this 

questionnaire. 

 

Qb. Are you responding on your own behalf or on behalf of an organisation or group? 

PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY 

 

 Providing my own response (Please respond to Qc below) 

 Providing a response on behalf of an organisation or group (Please respond to Qd and Qe) 

 

 

Qc. Your Contact Details  

Please provide your name, address, postcode and email address. While these details are not compulsory, 

if you can provide your contact details, these may be used to inform you of the outcomes of the 

consultation. 

 

In particular, please consider providing your postcode as this information will be used to analyse how 

consultation responses differ by geography, allowing Transport for the North to understand more about 

local priorities in your area. 

PLEASE WRITE IN BELOW 

 

Name (optional): 

 

Address:  

 

Postcode: 

 

E-mail address: 

 

 

  

Page 34



 

3 

Details of your Organisation or Group  
 

Qd. What is your name, role and the name and address of the organisation/group on whose behalf 

you are submitting this response? 

PLEASE WRITE IN BELOW 

 

Your name (optional): 

 

Your role (optional): 

 

Name and address of organisation or group (optional): 

 

 

 

 

Postcode of organisation or group: 

 

 

 

Category of Organisation  

 

Qe. What category of organisation or group are you representing? 

PLEASE TICK  ALL BOXES THAT APPLY 



 Academic (includes universities and other academic institutions) 

 Action group 

 Business

Business representative group (includes CBI, Chambers of Commerce, LEPs) 

 Charity/voluntary sector group 

 Elected representative (includes MPs, MEPs, and local councillors) 

 Environment, heritage, amenity or community group (includes environmental groups, schools, 

church groups, residents’ associations, recreation groups and other community interest 

organisations) 

 Local Government (includes county councils, district councils, parish and town councils and local 

partnerships) 

 Professional body/representative group  

 Statutory agency  

 Transport, infrastructure or utility organisation (includes transport bodies, transport providers, 

infrastructure providers and utility companies)   

 Think Tank 

 Transport user group 

 Other category of organisation or group (PLEASE TICK AND WRITE IN BELOW) 

 

 Prefer not to say 

 

Page 35



 

4 

Consultation questions 

 
Transport for the North’s (TfN) Vision   

 

Q1a. Transport for the North has a vision, which is to establish “a thriving North of England, 

where modern transport connections drive economic growth and support an excellent quality of 

life”. For more information see page 12 of the Draft Strategic Transport Plan. 

 

To what extent do you support or oppose the vision of Transport for the North as defined in the 

Draft Strategic Transport Plan? PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY 



 Strongly support 

 Tend to support 

 Neither support nor oppose 

 Tend to oppose 

 Strongly oppose 

 Don’t know 

 

 

Pan-Northern Transport Objectives 

 

Q1b. The Draft Strategic Transport Plan has developed four, pan-Northern transport objectives. 

For more information see pages 12-13 of the Draft Strategic Transport Plan. 

 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the pan-Northern objectives outlined in the Draft 

Strategic Transport Plan? PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY PER ROW 

 

 Strongly 

agree 

Tend to 

agree 

Neither agree 

nor disagree 

Tend to 

disagree 

Strongly 

disagree 

Don’t 

know 

Increase efficiency, 

reliability and resilience 

in the transport system 

      

Transforming economic 

performance 
      

Improve access to 

opportunities across the 

North 

      

Promote and support the 

built and natural 

environment 

      

 

  

Page 36



 

5 

Q1c. Please let us know your comments on Transport for the North’s vision and/or the four pan-

Northern transport objectives. 

 

Please indicate clearly in your response whether you are responding about the vision and/or the 

objectives, and which specific objective(s) your comments relate to (if more than one).  

PLEASE WRITE IN BELOW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Transport’s role in driving the North economy (Why?) 

 

Q2a. The ‘Why’ section of the Draft Strategic Transport Plan sets out the approach and process for 

developing Transport for the North’s programmes of work. 

For more information see pages 18-20 (which present the rationale for a spatial approach) and pages 

24-25 (which forecast future transport demand) of the Draft Strategic Transport Plan. 

 

To what extent do you support or oppose the process which has been followed to develop the 

Draft Strategic Transport Plan? PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY 

 

 Strongly support 

 Tend to support 

 Tend to oppose 

 Strongly oppose 

 No view on the process 

 Don’t know 

 

  

Page 37



 

6 

Q2b. The Draft Strategic Transport Plan identifies at least three main roles which transport can 

play to help to drive the economy and deliver the transformational change required. These are 

Connecting People, Connecting Businesses and Moving Goods. 

For more information see pages 30-35 of the Draft Strategic Transport Plan. 

 

Please let us know your comments on the three main roles which transport can play to help drive 

the economy and deliver transformational change, including if there are any other roles which 

should be considered alongside these. 

 

Please indicate clearly in your response which specific role(s) your comments relate to. 

PLEASE WRITE IN BELOW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Identifying the major strategic interventions (What?)  

 

Q3a. Northern Powerhouse Rail aims to significantly improve capacity, frequency, speed, and 

services between the North’s main economic centres. 

For more information see pages 44-47 of the Draft Strategic Transport Plan. 

 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the emerging vision for Northern Powerhouse Rail  

as shown on page 45 of the Draft Strategic Transport Plan? 

PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY 

 

 Strongly agree 

 Tend to agree 

 Neither agree nor disagree

Tend to disagree

 Strongly disagree 

 Don’t know 

 

Page 38



 

7 

Q3b. The Long Term Rail Strategy aims to improve train services, stations and lines on the wider 

rail network. It defines a series of five ‘themes’, each addressing one or more of the key gaps 

preventing the current rail network from delivering the pan-Northern transport objectives. 

For more information see pages 48-52 of the Draft Strategic Transport Plan, and the accompanying 

Long Term Rail Strategy published alongside the Draft Strategic Transport Plan. 
 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the aims and objectives of each of the five ‘themes’, 

as outlined on page 50 of the Draft Strategic Transport Plan? 

PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY PER ROW 
 

 Strongly 

agree 

Tend to 

agree 

Neither agree 

nor disagree 

Tend to 

disagree 

Strongly 

disagree 

Don’t 

know 

Connectivity       
Capacity       
Customer       
Community       
Cost Effectiveness      

 

 

Q3c.  The Major Roads Network for the North (along with Strategic Road Studies) aims to improve 

the reliability, efficiency, quality and resilience of the North’s road network.  

For more information see pages 54-57 of the Draft Strategic Transport Plan. 
 

Transport for the North and its Partners have identified a Major Road Network for the North, 

which includes roads managed by local transport and highways authorities and also those 

managed by Highways England (such as Motorways and A-roads). This approach is based on the 

principle that the last mile can make all the difference as to whether goods or people arrive on 

time and/or as efficiently as possible, and so management and investment of this Network is a 

priority.  
 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the development of a 'Major Road Network for the 

North'? PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY 

 

 Strongly agree 

 Tend to agree 

 Neither agree nor disagree

Tend to disagree

 Strongly disagree 

 Don’t know 

 

 

  

Page 39



 

8 

Q3c2. To what extent do you agree or disagree with Transport for the North's focus on 'the last 

mile' as a means to improve the overall reliability, efficiency, quality and resilience of the North's 

road network? PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY 

 

 Strongly agree 

 Tend to agree 

 Neither agree nor disagree

Tend to disagree

 Strongly disagree 

 Don’t know 

 

 

Q3d. Integrated and Smart Travel aims to improve the experience for people using public 

transport across the North. 

For more information see page 58 of the Draft Strategic Transport Plan. 

 

How important or not do you think Integrated and Smart Travel is to delivering the four key 

programme objectives, as outlined on page 58 of the Draft Strategic Transport Plan?  

PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY PER ROW 

 

 
Essential 

Very 

important 

Fairly 

important 

Not very 

important 

Not at all 

important 

Don’t 

know 

Enabling economic growth in 

the North 
      

Improving customer experience       
Increasing efficiency across the 

transport network 
      

Providing a consistent and 

familiar travel experience 

throughout the North 

      

 

 

Q3e. Seven ‘Strategic Development Corridors’ have been identified to help inform major strategic 

transport interventions. 

For more information see pages 60-61 of the Draft Strategic Transport Plan. 

 

Do you agree or disagree with the approach to how the Strategic Development Corridors have 

been identified, as outlined on pages 60-61 of the Draft Strategic Transport Plan?  

PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY 


 Strongly agree 

 Tend to agree 

 Neither agree nor disagree

Tend to disagree

 Strongly disagree 

 Don’t know 

 

Page 40



 

9 

Q3f. Please let us know your comments on Transport for the North’s identified work programmes 

as set out in the Draft Strategic Transport Plan.  
 

Please note at this stage we are not seeking feedback on specific infrastructure projects 

themselves – an opportunity will be given on a project-by-project basis when such projects are 

brought forward and developed.  
 

Please tick the identified work programme you wish to comment on below. You are welcome to 

comment on one or more of the programmes. 
 

If you want to comment on the Strategic Development Corridors please tick which specific one 

your comments relate to. If you want to make a comment about Strategic Development Corridors 

in general then please tick the ‘Strategic Development Corridors (overall)’ box only. 

PLEASE TICK  ALL BOXES THAT APPLY 

 

 Northern Powerhouse Rail 

 Long Term Rail Strategy 

 The Major Roads Network for the North (along with Strategic Road Studies)

Integrated and Smart Travel 

 The Strategic Development Corridors (overall) 

 Connecting the Energy Coasts 

 West and Wales 

 Central Pennines 

 Southern Pennines 

 North West to Sheffield City Region 

 East Coast to Scotland 

 Yorkshire to Scotland 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 41



 

10 

Delivering Transport for North’s Investment Programme (How?) 
 

Q4a. The final chapter in the Draft Strategic Transport Plan presents seven strands which explain 

how Transport for the North’s Investment Programme could be delivered. To what extent do you 

think each of the seven strands listed are important to deliver Transport for the North’s 

Investment Programme? For more information see pages 78-91 of the Strategic Transport Plan. 

PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY PER ROW 

 

 

Essential 
Very 

important 

Fairly 

important 

Not very 

important 

Not at all 

important 

No view 

on this 

strand 

Governance and 

accountability  

(see pages 78-79) 

      

Stronger partnerships 

(see pages 80-81) 
      

Innovation  

(see pages 82-83) 
      

Northern transport skills 

(see page 84) 
      

Funding and financing  

(see pages 85-87) 
      

Appraisal and analysis 

(see pages 88-89) 
      

Ensuring a sustainable 

Investment Programme 

(see pages 90-91) 

      

 

 

Q4b. Please let us know your comments on the seven strands below. Please comment on any other 

delivery strands which are not included in the list currently. 

Please indicate clearly in your response which specific strand(s) your comments relate to. 

PLEASE WRITE IN BELOW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42



 

11 

Overall 

Q5a. To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statement? 

‘Overall, the Draft Strategic Transport Plan will give businesses the confidence to invest in the 

North over the coming decades’  

PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY 

 

 Strongly agree 

 Tend to agree 

 Neither agree nor disagree

Tend to disagree

 Strongly disagree 

 Don’t know 

 

 

Q5b. Overall, to what extent do you support or oppose the Draft Strategic Transport Plan in its 

current format? PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY 

 

 Strongly support 

 Tend to support 

 Neither support nor oppose 

 Tend to oppose 

 Strongly oppose 

 No view 

 Don’t know 

 

 

Q5c. Please explain your response to Q5b below. 

PLEASE WRITE IN BELOW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43



 

12 

The Integrated Sustainability Appraisal   

The following questions are about the Independent Integrated Sustainability Appraisal. Please 

therefore read the Independent Integrated Sustainability Appraisal document before answering 

the following questions. 

 

Q6a. Please provide any comments you have about the Independent Integrated Sustainability 

Appraisal, and its objectives, in the box below. PLEASE WRITE IN BELOW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please read Section 11 of the Independent Integrated Sustainability Appraisal entitled ‘Assessment of 

the Draft Strategic Transport Plan’ before answering the following question. 

 

Q6b. To what extent do you agree or disagree that a robust assessment of the Draft Strategic 

Transport Plan has been undertaken by the Independent Integrated Sustainability Appraisal? 

PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY 

 

 Strongly agree 

 Tend to agree 

 Neither agree nor disagree 

 Tend to disagree 

 Strongly disagree 

 Don’t know 

 

  

Page 44



 

13 

Q6c. Please provide the reasons for your response to Q6b. 

PLEASE WRITE IN BELOW 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Final comments   

 

Q7. What, if any, additional comments do you have that are relevant to this consultation on both 

the Draft Strategic Transport Plan and/or the Independent Integrated Sustainability Appraisal, 

that you would like to make? PLEASE SUMMARISE YOUR KEY COMMENTS IN THE BOX BELOW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45



 

14 

Personal Information  

We would be grateful if you could answer the following questions so we can establish from whom we 

have received comments, and to allow us to analyse the results overall and by these different groups of 

people. Please remember that the Response Form and the information you provide may be subject to 

publication or release to other parties or to disclosure under regimes such as the Freedom of Information 

Act 2000, the Data Protection Act 1998 and the Environmental Information Regulations Act 2004. 

 

S1. How old are you? 

PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY 


 Under 16 

 16-24 

 25-34 

 35-44 

 45-54 

 55-64 

 65-74 

 75+ 

 Prefer not to say 

 

 

S2. Which of these activities best describes what you are doing at present? 

PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY 


 Employee in full-time job (30 hours plus per week) 

 Employee in part-time job (under 30 hours per week) 

 Self-employed full or part-time 

 On a government supported training programme (e.g. Modern Apprenticeship/Training for Work) 

 Full-time education at school, college or university 

 Unemployed and available for work 

 Permanently sick/disabled 

 Wholly retired from work 

 Looking after the home 

 Doing something else (PLEASE TICK AND WRITE IN BELOW)  

 

 

  

Page 46



 

15 

S3. Which of these mode(s) of transport do you use on a weekly basis? 

PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY 


 Car or van (either as a driver or a passenger) 

 Bus 

 Train 

 Tram 

 Bicycle 

 Taxi/taxi apps 

 Walking all the way to your destination 

 Other (PLEASE TICK AND WRITE IN BELOW) 

 

 

 

S4. Would you be willing for Ipsos MORI to re-contact you for further research as part of this 

project in the next two years? PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY 


 Yes 

 No 

 

 

S5. Would you like Transport for the North to keep you informed about future developments with 

regard to the Strategic Transport Plan? PLEASE TICK  ONE BOX ONLY 


 Yes 

 No 

 

 

IF YES TO EITHER S4 OR S5 ABOVE 

Please provide your email address to which you would like correspondence to be sent in the box 

below (if different from the one provided at the beginning of your response).  

 

E-mail address: 

 

 

Thank you for taking part in this consultation.   

 

Page 47



Page 48



Strategic 
Transport Plan

Appendix D

P
age 49



P
age 50



National 

Pan-Northern

City Regions and Local Enterprise 
Partnerships

Local Transport Authorities, 
Combined Authorities

Local District, Planning and Highway 
Authorities

P
age 51



A TRANSFORMED NORTH

P
age 52



INVESTMENT IN TRANSPORT

P
age 53



P
age 54



Promoting 
and 
supporting 
the built and 
natural 
environment

Increasing 
efficiency, 
reliability and 
resilience of 
the transport 
system

Transforming 
economic 
performance

Improving 
opportunities 
across the 
North

PAN-NORTHERN TRANSPORT 
OBJECTIVES

P
age 55



ENABLING CAPABILITIES

PRIME CAPABILITIES

P
age 56



DISTRIBUTION OF 
PRIME CAPABILITIES

P
age 57



PROJECTED GVA 
GROWTH BY 2050

P
age 58



STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT 
CORRIDORS

P
age 59



P
age 60



P
age 61



P
age 62



P
age 63



Northern 
Powerhouse 
Rail

Major Road 
Network

Integrated 
and Smart 

Travel

Long Term 
Rail Strategy

Strategic 
Transport 

Plan

Strategic Development Corridors

P
age 64



Northern Powerhouse Rail 
junctions with HS2

NORTHERN 
POWERHOUSE RAIL

P
age 65



LONG TERM RAIL 
STRATEGY

P
age 66



MAJOR ROAD 
NETWORK

• Better journey 
reliability 

• Enhanced network 
efficiency

• Increased network 
resilience

• Improved journey 
quality

P
age 67



INTEGRATED AND SMART TRAVEL

• Tranche 1 (2018): Smart tickets for 
rail season tickets

• Tranche 2 (2018/19): Enhanced 
real time customer information  

• Tranche 3 (2019 - 2021):
Implementation of multi-modal 
contactless travel with simpler fare 
structures

P
age 68



£39 – 43 billion
Continued levels of strategic transport funding

£21 – 27 billion
Additional required for transformational strategic 

transport

Additional funding
Further funding may be required once work 

programmes have completed

FUNDING THE INVESTMENT 
PROGRAMME

P
age 69



CONNECTING 
THE ENERGY 
COASTS

P
age 70



WEST AND 
WALESP

age 71



CENTRAL PENNINES

P
age 72



NORTH WEST TO 
SHEFFIELD CITY 
REGION

P
age 73



DELIVERING THE STRATEGIC 
TRANSPORT PLAN

Spatial Planning Wider 
Partnerships

Innovation & 
Technology

Skills

Funding &
Finance 

Appraisal & 
Analytical Tools

Short, Medium & 
Long Term

P
age 74



ENSURING A SUSTAINABLE INVESTMENT 
PROGRAMME

STRATEGIC 
TRANSPORT PLAN

A healthier, safer, more 
inclusive transport network.

Green and blue 
infrastructure, supporting 
a net gain in biodiversity.

Promotes confidence in 
businesses to invest in a 

skilled labour market. 

A catalyst for future 
transport technologies, 
contributing to carbon 

targets.

P
age 75



CONSULTATION

Consultation is open until 17th April 2018

www.ipsos.uk/transportplanconsultation

TfN Draft Transport Plan Consultation
Ipsos Mori North
Freepost Admail 4275
Manchester
M60 1HE

transportplanconsultation@ipsos-mori.com

P
age 76

http://www.ipsos.uk/transportplanconsultation
mailto:transportplanconsultation@ipsos-mori.com


transportforthenorth.com

P
age 77



P
age 78



External Scrutiny Committee
Meeting to be held on Tuesday, 6 March 2018

Electoral Division affected:
(All Divisions);

External Scrutiny Committee Work Plan 2017/18
(Appendix 'A' refers)

Contact for further information:
Gary Halsall, Tel: (01772) 536989, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Overview 
and Scrutiny), 
gary.halsall@lancashire.gov.uk

Executive Summary

The Plan at Appendix 'A' is the work plan for the newly established External Scrutiny 
Committee.

Recommendation

The External Scrutiny Committee is asked to note and comment on the report.

Background and Advice 

A statement of the work and potential topics to be undertaken and considered by the 
newly established External Scrutiny Committee for the remainder of the 2017/18 
municipal year is set out at Appendix A. The work plan is presented to each meeting 
for information.

The work plan is a work in progress document. A list of topics requested by 
members of the Committee at its meeting held on 25 July 2017 is also set out in the 
work plan.

Consultations

N/A

Implications: 

This item has the following implications, as indicated:

Risk management

This report has no significant risk implications.

Page 79

Agenda Item 5



Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

N/A

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate

N/A

Page 80



Appendix 'A'
External Scrutiny – Work plan 2017/18

Updated: 23 February 2018

Date to C'ttee Report Lead Officers Outline reasons for scrutiny/scrutiny method

25 July 2017
Safer Lancashire – Community Safety 
Partnerships (CSP)

Clare Platt, Debbie 
Thompson, Angela 
Harrison, Robert Ruston

Overview report of CSPs across Lancashire and 
their priority areas for 2017/18

10 October
Hate Crime Saeed Sidat, Ian Mills and 

Andrew Proctor
Update on the Lancashire Hate Crime Strategy

Lancashire Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Martin Kelly/Kathryn 
Molloy, LCC

Presentation on the Lancashire offer, Assurance 
Framework, the LEP's priorities and City Deal

16 January 
2018 - 

postponed

Flood Risk Management – working together Rachel Crompton, LCC,
United Utilities plc,
Yorkshire Water plc,
Environment Agency.

Report on flood risk management authorities and 
partnership arrangements.

Affordable Housing Policies across Lancashire's 
district councils

Gary Halsall, LCC Overview of affordable housing policies across 
Lancashire's district councils

6 March
Extraordinary 

meeting

Transport for the North (TfN) – Consultation on 
the Draft Strategic Transport Plan

Jonathan Spruce and 
Robin Miller-Stott, TfN and 
Dave Colbert, LCC

Opportunity to contribute to the County Council's 
response to TfN consultation before it is signed 
off by Cabinet at its meeting on 12 April 2018.

24 April Franklaw Event – Drinking Water Inspectorate 
(DWI) and United Utilities Report

- Report on the Franklaw Water Treatment Works 
Summer 2015 water contamination event

Affordable Housing Policies across Lancashire's 
district councils

Gary Halsall, LCC Overview report of affordable housing policies 
across Lancashire's district councils

Flood Risk Management Rachel Crompton, LCC,
United Utilities plc.

Report on flood risk management and partnership 
arrangements. Presentation from United Utilities.

*= Provisional/subject to change/may require special meeting

P
age 81



Appendix 'A'
External Scrutiny – Work plan 2017/18

Updated: 23 February 2018

Statutory requirements (annual):

 Community Safety Partnerships
 Flooding (flood risk management functions or coastal erosion risk management functions)

Requested topics for the Committee:

Report Lead Officers Outline reasons for scrutiny/scrutiny method

United Utilities – investments and delivery UU – tbc Opportunity to formulate recommendations on UUs 6 
year asset investment programme.
Capacity of sewers, new housing developments, 
flooding, investments and proactive delivery, reservoir 
capacity and chalk streams, water outage in Fylde

Flood Risk Management – working together Rachel Crompton, LCC
EA, UU, YW

An overview of how work is co-ordinated between LCC, 
EA, UU (Canal & River Trust - more closely aligned to 
tourism/leisure and environmental management)

Community Safety Agreement – priorities and/or 
emerging initiatives/issues

Public Health/ LCFT/LCC 
Policy

Either; exploitation of vulnerable people/poor mental 
health determinant/Hate Crime Strategy/Prevent/Serious 
Harm Reduction Strategy/Pan-Lancashire Domestic 
Abuse Strategy/Alcohol Harm Reduction Action Plan

Transport for the North – Sub-national Transport Body Dave Colbert, LCC
Transport for the North – 
awaiting appointment of 
replacement Chief Executive
And Martin Kelly, LEP

Update on Strategic Transport Plan in relation to 
Lancashire

Community Policing in rural Lancashire PCC and Angela Harrison, 
OPCC

Access to police services and rural areas – front desks, 
111 service *responsibility of the Police and Crime Panel 
for Lancashire)*

P
age 82



Appendix 'A'
External Scrutiny – Work plan 2017/18

Updated: 23 February 2018

Potential external organisations/topics for the Committee:

 Electricity North West
 Arriva/Northern Rail – transforming rail in the north
 Lancashire's Universities
 Third sector – One Lancashire
 Bus services
 Partnerships – BTLS, Road Safety, Resilience Forum
 National House Building Council (NHBC)
 Green Energy Companies
 Environmental Management – public rights of way, Canal & Rivers Trust

P
age 83



P
age 84


	Agenda
	4 Transport for the North - Consultation on the Draft Strategic Transport Plan
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28
	Slide Number 29


	5 External Scrutiny Committee Work Plan 2017/18
	Enc. 1 for External Scrutiny Committee Work Plan 2017/18




